
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting: Thursday, 6th January, 2022 
    at 1.00 pm (Banqueting Hall) 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART ONE 
 

1.   Appointment of Chairman 
 
To appoint a Chairman for the meeting. 
 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

3.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

4.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

5.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 9th September, 2021. 
 

3 - 26 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 6.   Application for a Premises Licence - Lakeland Service Station, Abbey 
Road, Barrow in Furness   
 
To consider the application for a new Premises Licence. 
 

27 - 120 



 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors Biggins 

Hall 
McEwan 
 
 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 Sandra Kemsley 

Democratic Services Officer 
01229 876321 
srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Friday 24th December, 2021 
 



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Thursday 9th September, 2021 
 at 1.00 pm. (Banqueting Hall) 
 

PRESENT:- Councillors Callister, Hall and McEwan. 
 

Officers Present:- Graham Barker (Public Protection Manager), Katherine Benson 
(Senior Licensing Officer), Ivor Churcher (Commercial Team Leader, Public Protection 
Services), Geoff Dowker (Environmental Protection & Public Health Team Leader), 
Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place), (Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and 
Governance), Sharron Rushton (Democratic Services Officer) and Sandra Kemsley 
(Democratic Services Officer). 
 
4 – Minutes 
 

The Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 12th August, 2021 were taken 
as read and confirmed. 
 

5 – Review of Premises Licence – Barrow Rugby League Football Club, Craven 
Park, Calcutta Street, Barrow-in-Furness 

 
The Senior Licensing Officer’s report set out details of an application received on 15th 
July, 2021 for the review of a Premises Licence under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 
2003 for Barrow Rugby League Football Club, Craven Park, Calcutta Street, Barrow 
in Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1XP.   
 
The Licensing Act 2003 provided a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory 
objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.  The 
licensing objectives are:- 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; and 

 The protection of children from harm. 
 
Each objective was of equal importance. There were no other statutory licensing 
objectives, so the promotion of the four objectives was a paramount consideration at 
all times. 
 
The Licensing Authority must also have regard to its Statement of Licensing Policy, 
and to the statutory guidance issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the Act. 
Chapter 11 of the Section 182 guidance specifically deals with Reviews. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



The review has been brought in support of the prevention of crime and disorder and 
the prevention of public nuisance licensing objectives. Supporting evidence had been 
detailed within the review application. The main issues were: 
 

 Indecent exposure; 

 Anti-social behaviour; 

 Noise levels; 

 Impact of patrons leaving the venue; 

 Intoxication of patrons; and 

 Littering. 
 
The notice of review had been properly served on all the responsible authorities. The 
Council had complied with the legislative process and displayed the appropriate notice 
at the premises and on its website as required, when the application for review had 
been made. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder was Barrow Rugby League Football Club. The 
Designated Premises Supervisor had held the position since 18th November, 2019. 
The Licence had been in force since the inception of the Licensing Act in 2005.  The 
Premises Licence had not been subject to any reviews since it had been granted. 
 
A copy of the existing Premises Licence had been attached as an appendix to the 
report. 
 
The consultations period for the review had run from 15th July, 2021 for 28 days 
(starting the day after the review application had been made).  
 
The applicant for the review had had consulted with the following Responsible 
Authorities:-   

 

 the chief officer of police; 

 the relevant licensing authority*; 

 the local fire and rescue authority; 

 the relevant enforcing authority under the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 
1974; 

 the local authority with responsibility for environmental health; 

 the local planning authority; 

 a body that represents those who are responsible for, or interested in, matters 
relating to the protection of children from harm; 

 Director of Public Health (DPH); 

 the local weights and measures authority (trading standards); and 

 Home Office Immigration Enforcement (on behalf of the Secretary of State). 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



Representations had been received from Cumbria Police, the Licensing Authority, 
Environmental Protection Team, Health and Safety Officer, which had been included 
as appendices to the report and summarised as follows:- 
 

Responsible 

Authority  

Content of representation Licensing 

objective(s) 

Environmental 

Protection 

(Appendix 5) 

- Many complaints made to the 

Council from residents, from a 

number of streets near to the 

premises 

- Complaints relate to noise emanating 

from the premises 

- Premises has been advised to seek 

professional advice from an acoustic 

engineer 

- Written warning sent to premises and 

DPS on 22 June 2021 regarding 

noise  

Prevention of 

public 

nuisance 

 

Health and 

Safety 

(Appendix 6) 

 

- COVID regulation breaches 

- Lack of social distancing at premises 

- Cumbria County Council Director of 

Public Health issued directions on a 

large event at the premises in August 

2020, these directions were 

breached 

- Warning letter sent regarding the 

marquee and ensuring it is not 

substantially enclosed in April 2021 

- Coronavirus Improvement Notice 

issued in July 2021 for lack of social 

distancing and no QR code 

- Fixed Penalty Notice issued July 

2021 for allowing bar service 

Public Safety 

 

Prevention of 

crime and 

disorder 

Cumbria Police 

(Appendix 7) 

- Fixed penalty notice issued in 

September 2020 as customers were 

not remaining seated 

- Calls to service at premises however 

similar volume to other licensed 

premises in the town 

- Lack of communication from 

premises  

Prevention of 

public 

nuisance 

 

Public safety 

 

Prevention of 

crime and 

disorder 

Licensing 

Authority 

(Appendix 8) 

- Meetings taken place between LA 

and premises 

Prevention of 

crime and 

disorder 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



- Action plan agreed to make changes 

to licence, however some actions 

have not been implemented 

- Written warning to premises 

regarding showing of films without a 

licence 

- Providing bar service when there was 

a legal requirement for table service 

to be provided 

- Breaches of licensing conditions 

regarding number of events allowed 

at premises 

 

Public safety 

 

 
There had been and eight representations from other parties, which had been included 
as appendices to the report and summarised as follows:- 
 

Appendix Content of representation Licensing objective(s) 

9 - Noise level is far too loud Prevention of public 
nuisance 

10 - Fighting and violent incidents 

- Marquee not 50% open 

- Anti-social behaviour 

- Constantly broken COVID 

rules 

Prevention of crime and 
disorder 
 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 
 

Public safety 

11 - Loud music 12 hours a day 

each weekend & on weekday 

nights 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

12 - Noise level atrocious  

- Loud festivals/events near 

housing estate unacceptable 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

13 - Unnecessary loud music 

- Unable to open windows 

- Nuisance from patrons at the 

premises and leaving 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

14 - Deafening levels of music 

- Noise level from the ground 

- Patrons leaving the ground, 

shouting, swearing, screaming 

- Patrons intoxicated – police 

called to respond 

- Broken glass/drug 

paraphernalia  

Public safety 

 
Prevention of crime and 
disorder 

 
Prevention of public 
nuisance 

15 - Excessive noise Public safety 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



- Anti-social behaviour 

- People urinating in the street 

- Shouting/screaming 

- Residents verbally abused and 

threatened with violence  

Prevention of crime and 
disorder 
 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 

16 
 

- Hindpool resident, not been 

disturbed by the noise or 

behaviour from the premises 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 
 

Protection of children 
from harm 

The Council had received six further emails supporting the premises. The emails were 
not deemed to be relevant to the licensing objectives so had not been included within 
the report.  
 
Two anonymous emails had been received supporting the review of the premises 
licence. 
 
The applicant for the review, the current premises licence holder, and those who had 
made representations had all been invited to attend the hearing in accordance with 
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 and Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) (Amendment) Regulations 2005 “the Regulations”. Information to 
accompany the notice of hearing had been provided to the premises licence holder in 
accordance with “the Regulations”.   
 
One of the applicants for the Review had attended the meeting to discuss their 
concerns with Members which included:- 
 

 The prevention of public nuisance - noise 
o The levels of sound (TV, DJ or music) was excessive; it can be heard 

around the town centre and beyond; 
o Little consideration for the residents who live in the area – noise all day 

every weekend; 
o Have had to shut windows to be able to sleep (although this doesn’t 

block out the sound); 
o Have had to leave the area at times to avoid noise levels – is having a 

negative impact on home life. 
o Patrons leaving the venue late at night; 
o Patrons intoxicated 
o Reported to Environmental Health – issued premises with written 

warning. 
 

The applicant for the Review stated that noise levels had improved slightly in 
Nelson Street but there was a need to protect residents for future. 

 
 
  

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 
o Indecent exposure; 
o Shouting, swearing and fighting; 
o Threats, violence and abusive behaviour; 
o Litter and broken glass. 

 
Three residents attended the meeting, two of which made representations to the Sub-
Committee.  They reiterated the concerns of the review applicant regarding noise. One 
commented that moving the marquee had impacted on how noise travelled. 
 
The Environmental Protection Officer attended the meeting and presented his findings 
which were attached as an appendix to the report, these included:- 
 

 16 complaints had been received regarding noise; 

 He offered advice regarding condition clarification, technical information 
and that the marquee offered very little sound attenuation (full details were 
included within the report). 

 
The Commercial Team Leader attended the meeting and stated that there was a lack 
of compliance and disregard for public safety, details of which were included within 
the report. 
 
A representative from Cumbria Constabulary attended the meeting and addressed the 
Sub-Committee. 
 

 Cumbria Constabulary had engaged with and taken enforcement action 
against Barrow Raiders in September 2020 under Covid Regulations. A 
Penalty Notice had been issued for contravention requirements to ensure 
that the customer remained seated whilst ordering or consuming food or 
drink on the premises. 

 No further Police led fines had been imposed although the Council had 
imposed a fine relating to breaches of Covid Regulations. 

 There had been 5 calls for service from April 2021; 

 2 intelligence received regarding the Public Entertainment Licence; 

 3 crimes submitted since April 2021; 

 44 calls for service in the surrounding area of Craven Park. 
 

 Police engagement with other licence holders in the town centre had 
feedback that they perceived problems created for their premises when the 
venue closed at the end of the evening; 

 

 The Police were concerned about the lack of communication from event 
organisers regarding policing events at the last minute when already 
committed to providing resources for other organised events elsewhere; 

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



 Policing of the events had not been excessive or outweighed other events 
in the town. 

 
Full details were attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
The Director of People and Place attended the meeting on behalf of the Licensing 
Authority. The response was attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
Three representatives on behalf of the Rugby Club attended the meeting and 
addressed the Sub-Committee, including: 
 

o The Rugby Club accepted the reason for the review and duty of care; 
o Mistakes had been made re: Covid Regulations; 
o They have learned lessons re: Covid and if happens again could deal with 

better; 
o Events had been extremely popular (over 50,000 people attending); 
o A Dispersal Policy was missing which if included would resolve some 

issues; 
o The Club understands that something needs to be done regarding noise. 

 

 Going Forward 
o They have erected a marquee which is located away from residents; 
o Noise will only be in the marquee; 
o Dispersal policy 
o Sustainable Acoustics Consultant had been appointed (will be visiting in one 

months time) – Consultant willing to work with Environmental Health re: 
testing. Will do with co-operation with residents. Suggest have report put in 
place and comply with and include in Licensing Conditions. 

o Suggested conditions had been circulated  
 
The representative for Cumbria Constabulary agreed that a dispersal policy would be 
good practice and assist in dispersing customers from the premises. 
 
Questions were answered on production and timescale for a noise report and 
measurements needed and the effect of the marquee. The Licensing Officer also drew 
Members attention to 16.52 of the statutory guidance with regards to conditions at 
review on non licensable activities. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee when determining an application for review, pursuant 
to Section 52 of the Licensing Act 2003 had power to take any of the following steps 
(if any) that it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives: 
 

 Modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition); 

 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 

 Remove the designated premises supervisor; 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

 Revoke the licence. 
 
When considering applications, the Licensing Authority would have regard to:  
 
 • The Licensing Act and licensing objectives;  
 • Government guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003; 
 • Any supporting regulations; and 
 • The Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
In accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings Regulations) 
2005 (as amended) it was moved by Councillor Callister and duly seconded to move 
into Part Two in order to further consider the application. Also pursuant to Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local government (Access 
to Information)(Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of Paragraph 5 – information in respect 
of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal 
proceedings. 
 

All parties with the exception of Councillors Callister, Hall and McEwan, Debbie 
Storr (Head of Legal and Governance), Sharron Rushton (Democratic Services 
Officer) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer) withdrew and were 
readmitted to the meeting following the Sub-Committee’s deliberations. 
 
In considering its decision the Sub-Committee considered the agenda papers and all 
matters raised by those making representations with regards to the review.  Attention 
had been paid to their representations with respect to the licensing objectives. 
 
In making its decision the Sub-Committee had regard to the Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy, statutory guidance and the licensing objectives. 
 
The decision of the Sub-Committee was: 
 

RESOLVED:- (Unanimously) It was agreed that in determining the review the 
conditions of the licence should be modified with additional conditions in support of 
the licensing objectives to cover the following:- 
 
1. Times of the licensable activities: 

That the times for Live Music, Recorded Music, Performance of Dance and 
Activity like music/dance be revised from 11:00 am to 21:30 Monday to Sunday. 
That the times for the supply of alcohol be revised from 11:00 am to 22:30 to 
apply Monday to Sunday. 

2. CCTV – to clarify that a CCTV system will be in operation at the premises. 
3. The implementation of a Dispersal Policy in consultation with the Police and 

Licensing Authority. 
4. SIA Staff – to ensure at least two SIA registered door supervisors are on duty 

when licensable activity taking place (except for competitive rugby and football 
matches taking place at the ground) to be risk assessed on a weekly basis. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 5



5. Noise - A detailed Noise Risk Assessment shall be undertaken by a suitably 
qualified acoustic consultant/engineer on the noise climate on and around the 
licensed premises as per advice of Environmental Protection Officer. 

6. Control measures and noise mitigation detailed and recommended in the noise 
risk assessment shall be implemented and maintained whilst the licence is in 
existence. If further noise complaints are received, this should be investigated 
by the license holder and further advice should be sought from the acoustic 
consultant/ author of the noise risk assessment and the licensing authority. 

7. That communications be undertaken with residents with regards to events at the 
Club. 

 
The full details including reasons for the decision would be confirmed to the parties to 
the hearing within 5 days. 
 
Parties had a right to appeal against the decision of the sub-committee and may do 
so by giving notice of appeal to the Magistrates Court for the area in which the 
premises concerned are situated within a period of 21 days beginning with the day on 
which they were notified of the decision by the licensing authority. 
 
The meeting closed at 3.38 pm. 
 
Note - The attached decision notice was communicated following the 
proceedings.

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



 
Licensing Sub-Committee 

 
RECORD OF DECISION 

 

Date of Meeting:  9th September, 2021 

Agenda Item: 5 – Review of Premises Licence - Barrow Rugby League Football 
Club, Craven Park, Calcutta Street, Barrow in Furness 

 
Decision Notice:   
 

 On 15th July, 2021 under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, an application had 
been made to the Licensing Authority in relation to premises known as Barrow 
Rugby League Football Club, Craven Park, Barrow in Furness for a Review of the 
Premises Licence. 

 The application had been made by Caroline and Jason Postlethwaite. 

 Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended stated that a responsible 
authority or any other person may apply to the relevant licensing authority for a 
review of a licence. 

 The Licensing Act 2003 provided a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory 
objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions were undertaken: 

o The prevention of crime and disorder; 
o Public safety; 
o The prevention of public nuisance; and 
o The protection of children from harm. 

 
Each objective was of equal importance. There were no other statutory licensing 
objectives, so the promotion of the four objectives was a paramount consideration 
at all times. 
 

 The Licensing Authority must also have regard to its Statement of Licensing 
Policy, and to the statutory guidance issued by the Home Office under Section 
182 of the Act. Chapter 11 of the Section 182 guidance specifically deals with 
reviews. 

 The review had been brought in support of the prevention of crime and disorder 
and the prevention of public nuisance licensing objectives. Supporting evidence 
had been detailed within the review application. The main issues were: 
 

o Indecent exposure; 
o Anti-social behaviour; 
o Noise levels; 
o Impact of patrons leaving the venue; 
o Intoxication of patrons; and 
o Littering. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 

 The notice of review had been properly served on all the responsible authorities. 
The Council had complied with the legislative process and displayed the 
appropriate notice at the premises and on its website as required, when the 
application for review had been made. 

 

 The Premises Licence Holder was Barrow Rugby League Football Club. 

 The Designated Premises Supervisor was Mr Steven Neale.  

 Mr Neale had been the Designated Premises Supervisor Since 18th November, 
2019.  

 The licence had been in force since the Licensing Act’s inception in 2005. 

 The Premises Licence had not been subject to any reviews since it had been 
granted. 

 A copy of the existing premises licence had been attached as an appendix to the 
report. 

 The consultation period for the review had run from 15th July, 2021 for 28 days 
(starting the day after the review application had been made). 
 

 The applicant for the review had consulted with the following responsible 
authorities:- 

 
o the chief officer of police;  

o the relevant licensing authority; 

o the local fire and rescue authority;  

o the relevant enforcing authority under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 

1974;  

o the local authority with responsibility for environmental health;  

o the local planning authority;  

o a body that represents those who are responsible for, or interested in, 

matters relating to the protection of children from harm; 

o Director of Public Health (DPH); 

o the local weights and measures authority (trading standards); and  

o Home Office Immigration Enforcement (on behalf of the Secretary of State). 

 

 Representations had been received from Cumbria Police, Licensing Authority, 
Environmental Protection Team, Health and Safety Officer). 

 There had been eight representations from other parties. 

 The Council had received six further emails supporting the premises. The emails 
were not deemed to be relevant to the licensing objectives so had not been 
included within the report. 

 Two anonymous emails had been received supporting the review of the premises 
licence. 
 

 One of the applicants for the Review had attended the meeting to discuss their 
concerns with Members which included:- 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



 

 The prevention of public nuisance - noise 

o The levels of sound (TV, DJ or music) was excessive; it can be heard 

around the town centre and beyond; 

o Little consideration for the residents who live in the area – noise all day 

every weekend; 

o Have had to shut windows to be able to sleep (although this doesn’t 

block out the sound); 

o Have had to leave the area at times to avoid noise levels – is having a 

negative impact on home life. 

o Patrons leaving the venue late at night; 

o Patrons intoxicated 

o Reported to Environmental Health – issued premises with written 

warning. 

 

 The applicant for the Review stated that noise levels had improved slightly 
in Nelson Street but there was a need to protect residents for future.   
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 
o Indecent exposure; 
o Shouting, swearing and fighting; 
o Threats, violence and abusive behaviour; 
o Litter and broken glass. 

 

 Three residents attended the meeting, two of which made representations to the 
Sub-Committee.  They reiterated the concerns of the review applicant regarding 
noise. One commented that moving the marquee had impacted on how noise 
travelled. 

 

 The Environmental Protection Officer attended the meeting and presented his 
findings which were attached as an appendix to the report, these included:- 

 

 16 complaints had been received regarding noise; 

 He offered advice regarding condition clarification, technical information 
and that the marquee offered very little sound attenuation (full details were 
included within the report). 

 

 The Commercial Team Leader attended the meeting and stated that there was a 
lack of compliance and disregard for public safety, details of which were included 
within the report. 

 

 A representative from Cumbria Constabulary attended the meeting and addressed 
the Sub-Committee. 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 Cumbria Constabulary had engaged with and taken enforcement action 
against Barrow Raiders in September 2020 under Covid Regulations. A 
Penalty Notice had been issued for contravention requirements to ensure 
that the customer remained seated whilst ordering or consuming food or 
drink on the premises. 

 No further Police led fines had been imposed although the Council had 
imposed a fine relating to breaches of Covid Regulations. 

 There had been 5 calls for service from April 2021; 

 2 intelligence received regarding the Public Entertainment Licence; 

 3 crimes submitted since April 2021; 

 44 calls for service in the surrounding area of Craven Park. 
 

 Police engagement with other licence holders in the town centre had 
feedback that they perceived problems created for their premises when the 
venue closed at the end of the evening; 

 

 The Police were concerned about the lack of communication from event 
organisers regarding policing events at the last minute when already 
committed to providing resources for other organised events elsewhere; 

 

 Policing of the events had not been excessive or outweighed other events 
in the town. 
 

Full details were attached as an appendix to the report. 
 

 The Director of People and Place attended the meeting on behalf of the Licensing 
Authority. The report was attached as an appendix to the report. 
 

 Three representatives on behalf of the Rugby Club attended the meeting and 
addressed the Sub-Committee, including: 

 
o The Rugby Club accepted the reason for the review and duty of care; 
o Mistakes had been made re: Covid Regulations; 
o They have learned lessons re: Covid and if happens again could deal with 

better; 
o Events had been extremely popular (over 50,000 people attending); 
o A Dispersal Policy was missing which if included would resolve some 

issues; 
o The Club understands that something needs to be done regarding noise. 

 

 Going Forward 
o They have erected a marquee which is located away from residents; 
o Noise will only be in the marquee; 
o Dispersal policy 
o Sustainable Acoustics Consultant had been appointed (will be visiting in one 

months time) – Consultant willing to work with Environmental Health re: 

Page 16

Agenda Item 5



testing. Will do with co-operation with residents. Suggest have report put in 
place and comply with and include in Licensing Conditions. 

o Suggested conditions had been circulated  
 
The representative for Cumbria Constabulary agreed that a dispersal policy would be 
good practice and assist in dispersing customers from the premises. 
 
Questions were answered on production and timescale for a noise report and 
measurements needed and the effect of the marquee. The Licensing Officer also drew 
members attention to 16.52 of the statutory guidance with regards to conditions at 
review on non licensable activities. 
 
In considering its decision the Sub-Committee considered the agenda papers and all 
matters raised by those making representations with regards to the review.  Attention 
had been paid to their representations with respect to the licensing objectives. 
 
In making its decision the Sub-Committee had regard to the Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy, statutory guidance and the licensing objectives. 
 
Sub Committee Decision: 
 
That in determining the review the conditions of the licence should be modified with 
additional conditions in support of the licensing objectives to cover the following: 
 
8. Times of the licensable activities: 

That the times for Live Music, Recorded Music, Performance of Dance and 
Activity like music/dance be revised from 11:00 am to 21:30 Monday to Sunday. 
That the times for the supply of alcohol be revised from 11:00 am to 22:30 to 
apply Monday to Sunday. 

9. CCTV – to clarify that a CCTV system will be in operation at the premises 
10. The implementation of a Dispersal Policy in consultation with the Police and 

Licensing Authority 
11. SIA Staff – to ensure at least two SIA registered door supervisors are on duty 

when licensable activity taking place (except for competitive rugby and football 
matches taking place at the ground) to be risk assessed on a weekly basis 

12. Noise - A detailed Noise Risk Assessment shall be undertaken by a suitably 
qualified acoustic consultant/engineer on the noise climate on and around the 
licensed premises as per advice of Environmental Protection Officer. 

13. Control measures and noise mitigation detailed and recommended in the noise 
risk assessment shall be implemented and maintained whilst the licence is in 
existence. If further noise complaints are received, this should be investigated 
by the license holder and further advice should be sought from the acoustic 
consultant/ author of the noise risk assessment and the licensing authority. 

14. That communications be undertaken with residents with regards to events at the 
Club. 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



(the modified conditions to be incorporated with the existing licence conditions have been 
attached to this decision notice)  

 
Reasons for decision: 
 
In reaching this decision, the Sub-Committee were mindful of the need to ensure that 
any licenced premises operates in a way which promotes the four licensing objectives 
contained within the Licensing Act 2003, Revised guidance issued under section 182 
of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, namely 
 

1. The prevention of crime and disorder; 
2. Public safety; 
3. The prevention of public nuisance; and 
4. Protection of children from harm. 

 
The Sub-Committee were grateful for the representations made by all parties.  All 
parties were afforded an opportunity to address its Members and respond to questions 
raised. 
 
It was clear from the evidence presented to the Sub-Committee that there have been 
numerous efforts made by the Responsible Authorities to work with the Club to secure 
the licensing objectives, the main concerns being with regards to crime and disorder 
and public nuisance. The Sub-Committee noted that the Club has received previous 
written warnings from responsible authorities which had not been fully adhered to. The 
Sub-Committee heard the representations, particularly with regards to the levels of 
noise emanating from the premises, covid related breaches, and the impact on the 
local neighbourhood.  The Sub-Committee focussed on the licensing objectives and 
the fact that this was a review hearing 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the representations from the Police with regards to 
crime and disorder which had been acknowledged as fair by the Club but noted the 
ongoing lack of communication from the organisers of events at Barrow Raiders and 
also the views of Cumbria Constabulary with regards to increasing the number of 
professional SIA door staff to mitigate against some of the issues.  A dispersal policy 
had also been put forward during the course of the hearing. 
 
Consideration was given to each of the options available in determining the review.  
The Sub-Committee was encouraged that the Club has acknowledged that mistakes 
had been made and that lessons had been learnt.   

They considered that the level of public nuisance from the Premises was at an 
unacceptable level and would not be tolerated by the Licensing Authority. The Club 
provided no evidence to show how they may work with residents moving forward and 
the Sub-Committee were of the view that if the conditions were not modified that the 
issues around the Premises Licence would continue.   
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 5



To that end they considered that the times of the licensable activities should be 
revised. That the times for live music, recorded music, performance of dance and 
activity like music/dance be revised from 11:00 am to 21:30 Monday to Sunday, that 
section 177A of the Licensing Act 2003 does not apply to the premises and that the 
supply of alcohol should be revised from 11:00 to 22:30 Monday to Sunday – 
Promotion of Licensing Objective – Prevention of public nuisance. 
 
Licensing Objectives – prevention of crime and public nuisance 
That CCTV system be in operation at the premises 
That a dispersal policy be agreed in consultation with the Police and Licensing 
Authority 
Provision of SIA staff 
 
It was considered that these provisions would assist in management of people leaving 
the premises and those that may be behaving in an anti-social manner.   
 
Additional noise conditions – prevention of public nuisance 
It was considered that noise was the major concern arising from the Review of the 
Premises Licence and having heard from the Environmental Protection Officer 
considered that a detailed Noise Risk Assessment should be undertaken by a suitably 
qualified acoustic consultant/engineer on the noise climate on and around the licensed 
premises as per advice of Environmental Protection Officer and that following that 
control measures and noise mitigation should be implemented and maintained whilst 
the licence is in existence. 
 
Communications – licensing objectives 
It was considered that the Club should more effectively communicate with residents 
with regards to events at the club. 
 
Other options considered 
 
No further action  
 
Before reaching its decision, the Sub-Committee considered whether the option of 
doing nothing or an informal warning was appropriate.  The Sub-Committee did not 
consider this to be an appropriate course of action because having heard the evidence 
it was satisfied that the Club had previously been warned by the Responsible 
Authorities of the need to take steps to deal with the noise and anti-social behaviour 
complaints which had led to the review application and had failed to address all the 
concerns raised. Leaving the licence in its current state would not address these 
issues. 
 
To exclude a Licensable Activity from the Scope of the Premises Licence 
 
Before reaching its decision, the Sub-Committee considered whether compliance 
could be secured by excluding a licensable activity from the scope of the premises 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



licence.  On balance, however, they considered that the licence could be controlled 
through modification of the conditions. 
 
To remove the designated premises supervisor 
 
The Sub-Committee did consider this option and expressed concerns regarding the 
ability to ensure compliance with the Licence and promote the licensing objectives.  
They noted that warnings had been given, and that whilst there was some compliance 
there were still areas causing concern and that the culture needed to change and that 
it be made clear that the Sub-Committee would not tolerate any ongoing disregard of 
the licensing objectives. 
 
To suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
 
Consideration was also given to suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 
three months.  On the evidence before it, the Sub-Committee was not satisfied that a 
time limited suspension would address adequately or resolve the unsatisfactory 
operation of the premises as evidenced at the hearing.   
 
To revoke the premises licence 
 
The Sub-Committee considered that revocation was not an appropriate or 
proportionate response to the review and was very much a last resort not to be taken 
lightly.   
 
The promotion of the licensing objectives were considered paramount in this case. 
  
Reasons for not adopting other available options: 
 
Reasons for decision outweighed adopting any other option. 

Appeal Rights 

Parties have a right to appeal against the decision of the sub-committee and may do 
so by giving notice of appeal to the Magistrates Court for the area in which the 
premises concerned are situated within a period of 21 days beginning with the day on 
which they were notified of the decision by the licensing authority. 

  

Page 20

Agenda Item 5



 

Barrow Raiders – modified conditions following LSC hearing to be incorporated 
with existing licence conditions 
 

CCTV 

Licensing Objective – Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

Within 1 month from the date of the hearing (09/09/21), the premises licence holder 
must ensure that:  

a. Comprehensive and full colour CCTV cameras are located within the premises to cover 
all public areas including all entrances and exits (specifically entrance and exits on Willie 
Horne Way and Hindpool Road). [The location of cameras must be on the plan attached 
to the premises licence].  

b. The system records clear images permitting the identification of individuals. 

c. The CCTV system is able to capture a minimum of 4 frames per second and all recorded 
footage must be securely retained for a minimum of 31 days 

d. The CCTV system operates at all times while the premises are open for licensable 
activities. All equipment must have a constant and accurate time and date generation.  

e. The CCTV system is fitted with security functions to prevent recordings being tampered 
with, i.e. password protected.  

f. There are members of trained staff at the premises during operating hours able to 
provide viewable copies on request to police or authorised local authority officers as soon 
as is reasonably practicable in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 (or any 
replacement legislation). 

 

 

Dispersal Policy 

Licensing Objective – Prevention of public nuisance 

Within 1 month from the date of the hearing (09/09/21), the premises licence holder 
must ensure that a dispersal policy is formulated in consultation with the police and 
licensing authority. The dispersal policy shall encompass the use of notices, public 
announcements requesting patrons to leave quietly, periods where the volume of music 
is reduced/lighting increased/alcohol sales cease and any other relevant information to 
reduce the impact of patrons leaving the premises. 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 

SIA staff  

Licensing Objective – Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

At all times licensable activity is taking place at the premises (except for competitive 
rugby and football matches taking place at the ground), the premises licence holder must 
ensure at least two SIA registered door supervisors are on duty. Additional SIA registered 
door supervisors must be risk assessed on a weekly basis – this should be documented 
and produced on request to an authorised officer of the Council or police officer. 

Door supervisors must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority (“the SIA”) under 
the Private Security Industry Act 2001, or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of 
section 4 of the 2001 Act. 

A written record shall be kept on the premises by the Designated Premises Supervisor of 
every person employed on the premises as a door supervisor in a register kept for that 
purpose.  

That record shall contain the following details:  

a) the door supervisor's name, date of birth and home address  

b) his/her Security Industry Authority licence number  

c) the time and date he/she starts and finishes duty  

d) the time of any breaks taken whilst on duty 

e) each entry shall be signed by the door supervisor. 

That register shall be available for inspection on demand by an Authorised Officer of the 
Council, the Security Industry Authority or a Police Officer. 

 

 

Changes to licensable hours for entertainment   

Licensing Objective – prevention of public nuisance 

Live music, recorded music, performances of dance, activity like music/dance must finish 
at 21:30 Monday to Sunday.  

For the purposes of regulated entertainment, temporary structures such as marquees 
should be considered as Outdoors.   

The provisions of s177A Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by the Live Music Act 2012) shall 
not apply to this premises licence. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 5



Hours-Monday  11:00 to 21:30 

Hours-Tuesday  11:00 to 21:30 

Hours-Wednesday  11:00 to 21:30 

Hours-Thursday  11:00 to 21:30 

Hours-Friday  11:00 to 21:30 

Hours-Saturday  11:00 to 21:30 

Hours-Sunday  11:00 to 21:30 

 
 

Acquisition of an acoustic consultant   

Licensing Objective – prevention of public nuisance 

Supplementary Condition 1. Noise Risk Assessment 

A detailed Noise Risk Assessment shall be undertaken immediately by a suitably qualified 
acoustic consultant/engineer on the noise climate on and around the licensed premises as 
reference in Note 1.  

The assessment shall demonstrate:  

1. That any source of noise is fully understood and quantified under several plausible 
scenarios,  

2. All nearby noise sensitive receptors have been identified,  

3. The likely impact on any receptors has been determined with reference to noise 
standards in Note 2.  

4. A set of control measures where it is necessary to reduce noise to acceptable levels. 

 

Supplementary Condition 2. Noise Control & Mitigation 

Control measures and noise mitigation detailed and recommended in the noise risk 
assessment shall be implemented and maintained whilst the licence is in existence. If further 
noise complaints are received, this should be investigated by the license holder and further 
advice should be sought from the acoustic consultant/ author of the noise risk assessment 
and the licensing authority. 

Note 1: The noise risk assessment will outline the following: 

o A statement outlining the purpose and objectives of the risk assessment 

o A detailed review of the current and proposed activities on the licensed premises 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



o A description of the surrounding area and the noise sources incident around the 
licensed premises 

o The method that has been applied to assess the noise incident on site, including 
monitoring locations, the equipment used, calibration details, a weather summary 
and when the survey was conducted 

o A summary of the results pertinent to the survey which may typically include, LAeq,t, 
LAMax,T, LA90, LA10 and 1/1 octave LZeq,t. A Weighted SEL. 

o A assessment of the noise level results in accordance with the relevant British noise 
Standards and a subjective view on their ability to amount to a statutory nuisance.  

o Recommendations and mitigation measures required to protect the amenity of the 
area. 

Note 2: Noise levels that are based on “good” internal noise levels for bedrooms and 
“reasonable” internal noise levels for living rooms, as set out by the World Health 
Organisation document- Guidelines for Community Noise: Time Area Maximum noise level 
Daytime noise 07:00 – 23:00 Living rooms 40 dBLAeq, Outdoor amenity 55 dBLAeq, Night 
time noise 23:00 – 07:00 Bedrooms 30 dBLAeq, 45 dBLAmax. These levels must be achieved 
with windows open whereby a 12-15dB attenuation is achieved and noise should not 
amount to a statutory noise nuisance under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, 
Section 79. 

 
 

Communications with residents   

Licensing Objective – prevention of public nuisance 

All residential properties on and bounded by Clive Street, Walney Road, Blake Street, 
Bath Street, Hawke Street, Duke Street, plus Primrose Road and Rosebud Close (off 
Ironworks Road) must be given a formal written notice of any event that encompasses 
regulated entertainment and more than 499 people are expected to attend (except 
rugby, football and Amercian football matches) 8 weeks prior to the event. The notice 
shall include (but not exclusive to): 

 The start and end times of the event; 

 Contact details for the premises (email and phone number) should the resident 
have any queries about the event; 

 Information about how the noise will be controlled; 

 Information about how patrons will be controlled arriving and leaving the event; 

 Toilet provision; 

 Traffic and transport management; 

 Security and policing; 

 Refuse and waste management. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



 

Changes to licensable hours for alcohol  

Licensing Objective – prevention of public nuisance 

The supply of alcohol must finish at 22:30 Monday to Sunday. 

Hours-Monday 11:00 to 22:30 

Hours-Tuesday 11:00 to 22:30 

Hours-Wednesday 11:00 to 22:30 

Hours-Thursday 11:00 to 22:30 

Hours-Friday 11:00 to 22:30 

Hours-Saturday 11:00 to 22:30 

Hours-Sunday 11:00 to 22:30 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Licensing Sub-Committee 

Thursday, 6 January 2022 at 1.00 pm 

Application for a New Premises Licence 

 
 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Katherine Benson 

Wards:    Parkside 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report sets out details of an application for a premises licence under section 

17(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 for Lakeland Service Station, Abbey Road, 

Barrow in Furness, Cumbria, LA14 5LF. The applicant is Park Garage Group 

PLC. 

 

1.2  The application is the subject of one valid representation. The representation is 

objecting to the application, therefore a hearing is required.   

 

1.3 The applicant and parties making the representations have been notified of the 

hearing in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 

and Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) (Amendment) Regulations 2005 “the 

Regulations”. Information to accompany the notice of hearing was provided to 

the applicant and the parties making representations in accordance with “the 

Regulations”. 

 

1.4 Appendix 1 to this report provides details of this application. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1       It is recommended that Licensing Sub-Committee:-  

Consider the application for a new Premises Licence and determine 

whether: 

 

(a) to grant the application as submitted, subject to any mandatory 

conditions required; 

(b) to grant the application, modified to such an extent as considered 

appropriate in order to satisfy any relevant representations so as to 

adequately promote the licensing objectives; 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



 

(c)  to refuse the application in its entirety.  

 

The decision must be in line with the licensing objectives contained within 

the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

 Background 

3.1 The supply of alcohol, provision of regulated entertainment, and the provision of 

late night refreshment are licensable activities under s.1 Licensing Act 2003 (“the 

Act”). Authorisation from the Council, in its role as the licensing authority, is 

required in order to carry on any of these activities at premises within the 

Borough. 

3.2 The Licensing Act 2003 provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory 

objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken. 

The licensing objectives are: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; and 

 The protection of children from harm. 

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing 

objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount 

consideration at all times. 

3.3 Under s. 17(1) an application for a premises licence must be made to the 

relevant Licensing Authority subject to ss.54 and 55 (form of application and fees 

to accompany an application). Barrow Borough Council is the licensing authority 

for the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness. 

The application must be accompanied by:- 

a) An operating schedule 

b) A plan of the premises to which the application relates; and 

c) By a form of consent (where the application includes the sale of alcohol) 
given by the person whom the applicant has designated as premises 
supervisor. 

 

3.4  Under the scheme of delegation adopted by the Council, the Licensing Sub-

Committee (“the Sub-Committee”) is responsible for the exercise of many of the 

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



functions of the licensing authority, including determination of premises licence 

applications where representations have been received. 

3.5 It should be noted that this application is for a licence only. If the application for a 

premises licence is refused, the shop will still be able to operate without selling 

alcohol, but they must comply with any applicable duties which may be imposed 

by other relevant legislation (eg. fire, health & safety, planning). 

 

 The Application 

 

3.6 On 2nd November 2021, under s.17(1) of the Act, an application was made to the 

Licensing Authority by Park Garage Group PLC, in relation to premises Lakeland 

Service Station, Abbey Road, Barrow in Furness, Cumbria, LA14 5LF for a 

premises licence.  

3.7 The application seeks authorisation for the following: 

 

Supply of Alcohol (off the 

premises) 

Monday – Sunday 00:00 – 24:00 

Late Night Refreshment (supply of 

hot food or hot drink between 

23:00 – 05:00) 

Monday – Sunday 23:00 – 05:00 

Opening Hours of the Premises Monday – Sunday 00:00 – 24:00 

 

3.8 In accordance with s.17(5) the Applicant has advertised the application within the 

prescribed period in the prescribed form and manner. A notice has been 

displayed on the premises for a 28 day period and the notice has been published 

in the local newspaper. 

 

3.9 Additionally notice of application has been given by the Applicant through service 

of a copy of the application to the specified responsible authorities (this 

obligation is fulfilled by officers where the application was given electronically, 

sent on 2nd November 2021), satisfying s 17(6) of the Act.  

 

3.10 Failure to comply with these requirements would render an application invalid.   

 

3.11 A copy of the full application including the operating schedule, plan of premises 

and form of consent is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

Promotion of Licensing Objectives  

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



 

3.12 The applicant provides details in section 18 of their application of the steps 

 they intend to take to meet the four licensing objectives. These steps would in 

turn, where applicable, be made into conditions to be attached to the premises 

licence, if the application is granted. 

 

 Representations  

 

3.13 Section 18(3) of the Act states that where relevant representations are made, the 

authority must hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the 

applicant and each person who has made representations agree that a hearing 

is unnecessary. 

 

3.14 The Licensing Authority has received relevant representations and therefore has 

given notice of the hearing to the Applicant and those persons who have made 

relevant representations. 

 

3.15 The Council has consulted with the following responsible authorities:-   

 

 Licensing Authority (Barrow Borough Council*)  
 The Local Planning Authority  
 Environmental Protection Team  
 Chief Officer of Police  
 Health and Safety Officer  
 Divisional Officer, Cumbria Fire and Rescue  
 Trading Standards  
 Public Health  
 Safeguarding and Review, Child Protection; and 
 Home Office Immigration Enforcement (The Immigration Act 2016 

made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in respect of 
premises licensed to sell alcohol) 

 

*A licensing authority must carry out its function under the act with a view to 

promoting the licensing objectives and its licensing statement (s.4). 

 

3.16 Representations from responsible authorities 

 

3.17 On 3rd November 2021 Planning stated that the sale of alcohol does not impact 

on the planning status of the filling station (Appendix 2). 

 

3.18 On 25th November 2021 Cumbria Fire and Rescue confirmed they 

will not be making any representation regarding the application. 

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



This is subject to the premises having a suitable and sufficient fire safety risk 

assessment as required by the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

(Appendix 3). 

 

3.19 There have been no other representations from Responsible Authorities. 

 

 

3.20 Representations from other parties 

 

3.21 There has been one representation from another party, which is summarised 

below and produced in full at Appendix 4. 

  

Concerns raised Licensing objective(s) 

- People drinking in the street 

- Bottles being left in the street 

- Gangs hanging around the forecourt 

- Potential underage drinking 

- Anti-social behaviour 

Public safety 

 

Prevention of crime and 

disorder 

 

Protection of children from 

harm 

 

Prevention of public nuisance 

 

 

3.22 An attempt at mediation has taken place between the applicants agent and the 

person making the representation, however the objection was not withdrawn. 

  

3.23 The below table summarises nearby premises licensed to sell alcohol and their 

licensable hours for supply of alcohol off the premises. Please note that although 

premises are licensed to supply alcohol until a certain time, they may choose not 

to remain open until this time. Some licences also have seasonal variations, for 

example to supply alcohol for a longer period on bank holidays, at Christmas etc.  

  

3.24 Appendix 5 shows a location plan of the nearby premises. 

  

Name of Premises Licensable hours for supply of 

alcohol 

Co-Op, Abbey Road (approx. 0.0 miles 

away) 

06:00 – 23:00 Monday - Sunday 

Nisa, Oxford Street (approx. 0.5 miles 

away) 

06:00 – 23:00 Monday - Sunday 

Co-Op, Harrel Lane (approx. 0.6 miles 

away) 

08:00 – 23:00 Monday – Saturday 

10:00 – 22:30 Sunday 

Bargain Booze, Settle St (approx. 0.6 

miles away) 

08:00 – 23:00 Monday – Saturday 

10:00 – 22:30 Sunday 

Brighton Street Off Licence, Brighton 

Street (approx. 0.6 miles away) 

08:00 – 23:00 Monday – Saturday 

10:00 – 22:30 Sunday 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



Lakes Parade, Dalton Lane (approx. 0.8 

miles away) 

05:30 – 21:00 Monday - Sunday 

Lesh Lane Post Office (approx. 0.8 

miles away) 

08:00 – 20:00 Monday - Sunday 

Lesh Lane Stores (approx. 0.8 miles 

away) 

07:00 – 23:59 Monday - Sunday 

  

Licences held previously at the premises 

 

3.25 The premises previously held a premises licence from 2014 – 2021. This licence 

authorised supply of alcohol 06:00 – 00:00 Monday to Sunday and late night 

refreshment 23:00 – 05:00 Monday to Sunday. On 13th October 2015 a minor 

variation was submitted which removed the supply of alcohol from the licence, so 

the licence only authorised late night refreshment. The licence was then 

surrendered on 10th May 2021. 

 

3.26 On Friday 10th December 2021 the Council were in receipt of two complaints that 

the premises had begun selling alcohol without an authorisation in place. Officers 

advised the site operator that alcohol must not be sold without a valid 

authorisation. The alcohol was immediately removed from sale and the premises 

has been visited to check compliance. Temporary Event Notices were 

subsequently submitted to allow the sale of alcohol over the Christmas period. 

 
Borough of Barrow in Furness, Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 

 

3.27 Applications 

 

3.28 The Statement of Licensing Policy makes clear to applicants and persons who 

have made representations the considerations that will be taken into account 

when determining applications. It is also intended to guide the Sub-Committee 

when considering licensing applications; however, the Sub-Committee may 

depart from either the Statement of Licensing Policy or the statutory guidance 

where the circumstances of the application justify it and if there are good reasons 

for doing so.  Full reasons must be given and Sub-Committees should be aware 

that such departures could give rise to an appeal or judicial review. 
 

When considering applications, the Licensing Authority will have regard to:  

 

  • The Licensing Act and licensing objectives  

  • Government guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

  2003 

  • Any supporting regulations  

  • The Statement of Licensing Policy 

 

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



7.4 When considering applications where representations have been made, the 

Licensing Authority will seek to balance those factors against its duty to promote 

the four licensing objectives and the rights of residents to peace and quiet.  

 

3.29 The Licensing Objectives  
  

3.30 The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have a direct 

relationship to the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Every 

application should be considered on its merits, and there must not be a 'blanket 

policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of discretion in 

each individual case is precluded. Applications must be considered with regard 

to the principles of fair process and the Human Rights Act. 

 

3.31 National Guidance 
  

3.32 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

Section 2 – The Licensing Objectives is attached at Appendix 6. 

Section 8 – Applications for Premises Licences is attached at Appendix 7. 

Section 9 – Determining applications is attached at Appendix 8. 

 

3.33  The provisions of section 10 (Appendix 9) of the statutory guidance highlight 

that only precise, appropriate and proportionate conditions, which promote one 

or more of the licensing objectives, should be attached to the licence or 

certificate. The Sub-Committee should only impose such conditions as are 

necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of 

the representations received, and should avoid straying into undisputed areas. 

Conditions duplicating other statutory provisions are not considered to be 

appropriate. 

 

3.34  14.19: The need for licensed premises  

There can be confusion about the difference between the “need” for premises 

and the “cumulative impact” of premises on the licensing objectives, for example, 

on crime and disorder. “Need” concerns the commercial demand for another pub 

or restaurant or hotel and is a matter for the planning authority and for the 

market. This is not a matter for a licensing authority in discharging its licensing 

functions or for its statement of licensing policy 

 

  

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



 

3.35 Determination of application for premises licence 
 

3.36 When the Licensing Authority receives an application for a premises licence 

made in accordance with s.17(1) and it is satisfied that the applicant has 

complied with the requirements imposed under s.17(5) the Licensing Authority 

must grant the licence in accordance with the application subject only to:- 

 

a) Such conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule accompanying the 
application; and 

b) Any conditions which must, under ss. 19, 20, 21 be included in the licence 
(mandatory conditions). 

 

3.37 The application must be determined having regard to any relevant 

representations made. The below table considers the options available to 

members when considering this application. 

 

Options 

Grant the licence (as 

applied for) 
 Conditions which are consistent with the 

Operating Schedule, modified to such extent 
as the Licensing Authority considers 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

 Any applicable mandatory conditions. 

Grant the licence  Additional conditions (see Chapter 10 of the 

statutory guidance ‘Conditions attached to 

premises licences and club premises 

certificates’ Appendix 9) 

 Changes to licensable hours. 

 The Sub-Committee should only impose 

such conditions as are necessary to promote 

the licensing objectives arising out of the 

consideration of the representations 

received, and should avoid straying into 

undisputed areas. Conditions duplicating 

other statutory provisions are not considered 

to be appropriate. 

Refuse to grant the 

premises licence  
 Premises will be unable to sell alcohol or 

provide late night refreshment, but could 

continue to operate without a licence 

provided all other legal requirements are 

met. 

 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



4.0 Consultation  

4.1 This is a legislation led process; details of the statutory consultation are detailed 

above. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The requirements of the legislation place restrictions around the options 

available to the Licensing Sub-Committee. The options available are detailed 

above. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The effective implementation of the Licensing Act 2003 will contribute to an 

improved environment for local residents and other stakeholders.  

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.2 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report, subject to 

the risks set out at paragraph 7.10.  

This application is being processed as part of normal duties and therefore the 

work associated with it is contained within the departmental budget. 

7.3 Legal 

7.4 The sub-committee must determine the application, taking into account relevant 

representations, the Licensing Act 2003, the regulations made thereunder 

statutory guidance and the Council’s own licensing policy. 

7.5  The application meets the requirements of The Licensing Act 2003. 

 

7.6 Human Rights 

 

7.7  The Human Rights 1998 (HRA) requires public bodies to ensure everything they 

do is compatible with Convention Rights and makes it unlawful for a public 

authority to act incompatibly with those Rights. Article 6 (A6) of the European 

Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) is the right to a fair trial. The key elements 

of this include:  

 The right to a fair hearing;  

 The right to a public hearing; 

 The right to a hearing before an independent and impartial tribunal; 

 The right to a hearing within a reasonable time.  

 

7.8 When hearing an application, the proceedings of a non-judicial body such as the 

Licensing Sub Committee, as opposed to an actual Court, need not meet the full 

requirements of A6 where there is a right of appeal from the Licensing Sub 

Committee to a Court that does meet the full A6 standards and can consider all 

aspects of the case (even if that does not include a full re-hearing of the facts).  

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



7.9 While it is good practice to make a hearing before the Licensing Sub Committee 

as A6 compliant as possible, it will not be a breach of the HRA if it is not. Further, 

the hearing of all applications is subject to the principles of Natural Justice and 

the requirement for decisions to be ‘Wednesbury reasonable’. 

 

7.10 Risks  

 

7.11 An appeal against a decision of the Sub-Committee or a Judicial Review of the 

application process may present financial risks to the Council with regard to any 

award of costs against it. 

 

Any party to an application (that being an applicant or someone who made a 

representation) has a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court. 

 

8.0 Equality and Diversity 

The arrangements for the Licensing Hearings seek to ensure that all applicants 

and other interested parties receive a fair hearing and that the process is 

accessible to all groups within the community.  

 

Contact Officers  

Katherine Benson kbenson@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1 Application for the grant of a premises licence under the 

Licensing Act 2003 

Application form 

Premises plan 

DPS consent 

2 Representation from Planning  

3 Letter from Cumbria Fire & Rescue 

4 Other party representation 

5 Location plan of nearby premises 

6 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 – Licensing objectives 

7 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 – Applications for premises licences 

8 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 – Determining applications  

9 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 – Conditions attached to premises licences and club 

premises certificates 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 6

mailto:kbenson@barrowbc.gov.uk


Background Documents Available 

Name of Background 

document  

Where it is available  

1 Revised Guidance 

issued under section 182 

of the Licensing Act 2003 

 

2 Licensing Act 2003 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-

memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-

licensing-act-2003 

 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents  

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents


This page is intentionally left blank



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�!$%%&''( )�* �!�+�����'�$, %$%�( )$!)$- )$!% !.�&)*�/001 2�
�3��4�5���5�5�66�
5��78

�985:;�<:�=>���43���?�@ABBC�D����EFGBBB�H�
�I��
�������
6����J$)* �!�K��+�/KL���5���<���3����
6����M���6�����
���6��������
:�L������������������8����;;������93���M���
���6�:�M���6�
���
��5� N�����

����M�O��P�� >3�������3�����I���
���
��5����
��3���44��5�����;���
����8M��3���M���6:L��
�
���
��5� L���5��4���93��M���9���3�
�����3��4�M����
5=�44��5���������M���6=�����������3�6:�O�����4���������3����3�
��M:Q
��M�����;����5���;����8�3�������3��44��5��RL�� N� 	���S��S����M���
��44�M��;����M��
��9��8�3����
����8�3�������8��������M����9���
�9�
=���
:&''( )�!*�T$*� (%H�2�
����6� 	
=�U
;��U
��4�	V�H�26��M��6�H�WX6�� ;���7��5�����;6���
�:�����������43������68�
 �D�E��Y��Z�� O�5�����5����
M�5���:��3�
�����43������68�
O���5���3�
������3��44��5���9�����4
���
��������8��5���5����8M�����43���O���3��44��5��?Q44�M��;����8���������
��
;�������[���5�����;����������
��
Q44�M��;���������<���� Q�������
��
�����8���������9����8M�����4�
����9��3�����M��4�5�����;����
�5��
�:��Q44�M��;���������<�����6�����3��44��5������44�M��;�����3��44��5���5��8���64��M��[��
���
���6����3�
�4�
�����
����[���53��������9��;��3�88M:&''( )�!*��#% !$%%O���3��44��5��\��8��������
�;����
�������3��P]�9��3���64����������R L�� N� N���?�5�64�����;��3��Q44��5���̂����������5���������4����������3�����
6:_�;���
�������68�
 �ZB�F����̂��������6� 	
=�U
;��U
��4�	V� O���3��44��5��\��8�����������
�;����
��[���������
�;����
����6�:Q̀>���68�
 X 	���S����S�����3��44��5����������
�;����
�����
�̀Q>:V�;������� 	
�<���V�6�������64�M

Page 39

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+,,��-��.��,������������/��0���������1��-����
2 3������4��5��1 6/��-����
2�7/�
���/��,,��-��.��/��8�
��
��
�9:;<=>?;@;A�BAA@;>>C������5���10�
��
��1� DEF��������+,,
�-/��
���G���
�-����2��
���7� C
�1��2�����2��
��1�����
��H��
�	���-��� CI��JK������
2 3������4��5��1
+��
����
�5����
���7��/���1,����������9

B<;L?�M;?N=O>P�Q�
����1� R���P�Q1��2��1� �/�

��P�KE1�� 5���S��-�����51���
�9�����������,/������10�
 �D�T��U��F�� V�-�����-����
2�-���9��/�
�����,/������10�
V���-���/�
�����2���7�����,
���
��������0��-���-����02�����,/���+
��2��W+��5�����/������0���������
��
5�������X���-�����5��������
��
+�,
�H�������H�����-���5�����5��� +�������
��
�����0���������7����02�����,�
����7��/�����2��,�-�����5����
�-��
�9B<;L?�YZ>=L;>>V��2��
�0��������
�5����
�������/��34�7��/���1,����������[ \�� ]� ]���W�-�1,�����5��/��+,,��-���C����������-���������,����������/�����
19I�5���
�������10�
 �UT��JF�C���������1� �̂-�����5�����
��̂�� V��2��
�0�����������
�5����
��X���������
�5����
����1�9_+6���10�
 E 	���̀����̀����2���
������
�5����
�����
�_+69�̂5������� 	
�H���̂�1�������1,�2

Page 40

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+��
�,������������-��.���������/��0����
1 2������3��4��/ 5-��0����
1�6-�
���-��-��7�
��
�����1��
�.�������������0���89:;<=�>;:?@=;A;B�9BBA;@@C������4���/.�
��
��/� DE��
��� F�
������G
�H�G���
�0����1��
���6� ����-�
�������1��
��/�����
��H��
�	���0��� CCI��	J�����
1 2������3��4��/
K��
����
�4����
���6��-���/,����������8

L;M=?N<�O�NP�OQR>STULSL�VSW9UXLYZ6�[����/��������0�����\[�,,�1���
��,
�/�������0��0������
���0�����\I�����-��]�0�����4�K0�����̂���
��-��,
�/��������0
�.��������0�������.���6�_�-��,
�/����̀����YZ6��
��/a��4��-���,,��0��������1������-��
���H�����0�����4���-�
��1����00�
��0��6��-���0�����\������-��]�0�����4�K0�����̂8RA;b?@;@�9BBA;@@K
��1���.������,
�H�����,�������
���[����/,�
���
��0���
����0
�,���������-��,
�/����cK��
��� ���/,�
���
��0� G��0
�,����RN@=de�9BBA;@@�fP�RA;b?@;@C������4���/.�
��
��/� ]a�������
H�0����������
��� K..�1�g��G���
�0����1��
���6� C

�6����F�
���������1��
��/�����
��H��
�	���0��� ]K\E�D]F�����
1 2������3��4��/hiA=j;A�V;=d?e@5���,-������/.�
k��l��/����0�
��.���H�������,
�/�����_m̀ n�[D��

Page 41

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������ �!��"�#$%&&'()%*(+,�-.*%('�/��01��232��4�
��4���33�4��5���
��1��3
�6�������2��2�78������9������
�����9�����8���6�����2�63�4�:���6�������;����4�3
���
�1�38�3
���
�1�3�<��1�
��1����6�������;����4=8������2�
3�
�������2�������1�
�<��
��>63����������
4�2�
3�
����=8�
�2�5������2��;8�21
��4?1��3
�3
����
���������2���������;���16���8�1���1���
9�2��;��48�3�
����01�����
�5����
�������
�3
��������1���
������
���82�������<2@A=����
��3�2�����������3�������1��3�������B���8�3�
����01�����
�5����
�������
��13��
������	
��@�����1������1������2����
��82�����C����
��3�2������1��2

4��5��������
�5������2��9��4�<0��1����1��6����5�����1��	
�=����������3�������1��3�������D�5���?1��21��������2�
����3���2������3���2����
2�����D�5�������B���)� "�EF�*G��H�II�J� K/�6�2

4��5�����
�3
�3����5����2

4�����;��������01�21���9��9����1����������1��3
�6�������
���2���;���2��9�����/�6�6L��5��1��33��2�����3�
���������������
4����2����/�6�6L��5��1��33��2�����3�
������������2��������21
5���;4�9�
���������
��M���4N��3
�
�5��9������� �O��"�#$,+,�(,-(P(-Q%'�%&&'()%,*�	
�9�����6�����
�5����
�����
�������33��2����������R�B1�
��33
�3
����5�9���4�
�5����
�����6;�
R�/���1��2�������3
���
�1�3��
���1�
�M�����9����
��<��1�
��1���;��4�2�
3�
��=S�5�9���1���6�������
��������21�3
�4�2��2�
���R,� �( T�U�TVWI�%XXI��W �YZ�,WF�[6� 	
L�\
5��\
��3�	]�-��W�IZ�̂5����
�����6;�
�<01�
��33��2;��= �_A�̀���a��2
�3��������33��2���<��
��>63���3
���
�1�3S�2�63�4S�����2�
3�
�������2��������2=

Page 42

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+�,�������,-�./0012334������5���,6�
��
��,� 789��������:--
�;<��
���=���
�;����.��
���>� 4
�,��.�����.��
��,�����
��?��
�	���;��� 4@��AB������
. C������D��5��,EFGHIJH�K2HILM3B8,��N���-<������,6�
��<�
�����-<������,6�
O�=������6�
�< P P������������������,,�������������....O�Q�������. =�;�,������<����,����
����������,�������>�
R�����<��CD:������<�
�--��;��S2JHLFG�T�FU�VWXYZ[/\]̂_�SÈ ZKabZc<������.���>����<��-
�,�������;��;�������
�d �7 P7� P���7������������������,,�������������....e��.���>��<��<����;��;�����6��?�������.���
����,�����-�
���f�><������.���>������������ P P������������������,,�������������....	
�?�����5���
�����;
�-���������<��-
�,����g�
��h,-����<���.-�����-
�,����f�����5���
���������������.��������.���<�
�����
,�����><�;<�;�����6��
���?�������<����;�����5��6i�;��?��j�c<�
��.��
�--��;�������;���������8��--���������;�<������.�������������-
�?�����-�;����
�;����,-���������<�������8���--�����.���,������;���������;
�-��������><�
���<��-�;��>����6���������-
�h�,��.�����<��-
�,����j	
R�k
5��k
��-�
����,��.�
���6�����������6���<������7�Al����<?��--
�h�,���.�l��������m,����.���;��������<��+������
�n��-�
���5��o�<��
����.j�����<���������f��,�������
����;���������������;�<�����
��o�<��
�����5�>��<���<�
�-
���;�������<�
��
�����;�,-������
�-
�6��,��6�����<����������;�<���;
�����<�������j��N<��-
�,��������><�;<��<���--��;�����
����������>���8���6���<�����
�;��
��6���������<��<��
�;����.�6����-�
;<����6.��<��--��;��j�����

Page 43

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+,��-��.�����-�����
��/,�
���-�,���������0�����������.��0���
����
-����
��,����-��1��1�������,��
���������������21������1
���-�����-,���,����,����3����4�������
���4��
��,�����
�5�����������-6�7�-�,���/��������0���,����-�������,��0�����������/����0���������1
������,��-��.�����-������
��36��8�
��,���
����4��,�
��������91�-�������,���-�,���0���3�.��0�����
�����/����,.�����:������:1-������,��
��/��,���-��1��1���1�
-,���3��-�,������3�/��,���,�
�1
���-��6�+��:���3����,�����������-�,�����������:1-������,����-�����3��0;�-��.�����.�
��
�0����-����������,.��0������-��������1
������,���11��-����6�<��=4�����
�:�
��1��1���
���91�-��������������,��1
�:��������2�������:�4�������,����:0�
��91�-������������>?@ABCD�E�CF�GHIJKLM>MKN�KO�IPQR>����3����-�����
�3����������
���:���S����2���0��1
�.����3�1�2�TU�� V�>?@ABCD�W�CF�GHIJKLM>MKN�KO�OMPX>����3����-�����
�3����������
���:���S����2���0��1
�.����3����:�TU�� V�>?@ABCD�Y�CF�GHIJKLM>MKN�KO�MNZKKJ�>IKJ[MN\�]L]N[>����3����-�����
�3����������
���:���S����2���0��1
�.����3������
��1�
���3��.����TU�� V�>?@ABCD�̂�CF�GHIJKLM>MKN�KO�_K̀ MN\�KJ�aJ]>[PMN\�]N[]J[QMNX]N[>����3����-�����
�3����������
���:���S����2���0��1
�.����3�0�9��3��
�/
������3�����
���:����TU�� V�>?@ABCD�Hb�CF�GHIJKLM>MKN�KO�PML]�Xc>Md����3����-�����
�3����������
���:���S����2���0��1
�.����3���.��:���-TU�� V�>?@ABCD�HH�CF�GHIJKLM>MKN�KO�J]dKJZ]Z�Xc>Md����3����-�����
�3����������
���:���S����2���0��1
�.����3�
�-�
����:���-T

Page 44

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+,-./01�23�04�3256789+97:�7;�5<6;76=>:?<+�7;�@>:?<����A����B�����
�A����������
���C���D����E���F��G
�H����A�G�
��
C�B��������B�IJ�� K�+,-./01�2L�04�3256789+97:�7;�>:MNO9:P�7;�>�+9=9Q>6�@<+?695N97:�N7�Q98<�=R+9?S�6<?76@<@�=R+9?�76�5<6;76=>:?<+�7;�@>:?<����A����B�����
�A����������
���C���D����E���F��G
�H����A��E�T��A���C��
������H��C���BU�
�B�
����C���B��
�G�
��
C�B��������B�IJ�� K�+,-./01�2V�04�32Q>N<�:9PON�6<;6<+O=<:ND����E���F��G
�H����A�������AT��
��
��TC���IJ�� K�+.W1XWYX�@WZ[�>1X�N/\/1][��K̂ _J ��
��̀a�� b�� �ca����
� b�� d�H����C��A������e�T��
�B��Bfg�h�gAgU�ija��k�������E�A�H�����������
��T���E������T��l��f�lT���E�����������T��G
�C��������F���������
��T��B��H��Egmnb�̂_J ��
��̀a�� b�� �ca����
� b��Db̂Kb�̂_J ��
��̀a�� b�� �ca����
� b��m�no�̂_J ��
��̀a�� b�� �ca����
� b��poq̂_J ��
��̀a�� b�� �ca����
� b���_mnô_J ��
��̀a�� b�� �ca����
� b��

Page 45

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***�+,-./ ��
��01�� 2�� �31����
� 2��4�����5��6
�7���������������85��
��
��59�����:��6�;�������
���
�������
���
�<��5=>����
� ������
� ?��5 45�
���:��8�6�;������<������8��
���5�
���
�;��
����;:���66
�6
���@�>����
��9A���;����������@������A6�����;��7��A����<����5�
����B���������
��A������B����8�7��
���7�����
�5�
�������B���
��C96���D<��������C;����7��AE�F5��5�
��
�����9���;�F����<��96��������
���96������@������A��������7
������G�
��C96���D<��������C;����7��AE�F5�
���5��;��7��A�F�����;;�
��������������A����
��8��5����99�
�9���5�@,��H����
����9��8�@�45�
���5��6
�9�����F����<���������
��5����66�A����������85��
��
��59������������
������9����
�9��5���������������5��;���9������5������B������<���FG�
��C96���D<��������C;����7��AEB�F5�
��A���F��5��5��;��7��A����8��������8�
�����6
��;��
��A��@8@��5
���9��27�@IJKLMNO�PQ�NR�SPITUUVW�XY�ZV[X\XV4����A���<��������8��
���66�A��8��;�5��=/�� ,�IL]Ô]_̂�̀]ab�ZÔ�cMdMOeb��,-./ ��
���1�� 2�� �f1����
� 2�� g�7����9��8������f�5��
�;��;:@�D�@8@B�hi1��E�������A�8�7�����������
��5���A������5��F��:�F5���A�����������5��6
�9��������<���������
��5��;��7��A@

Page 46

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+,-�./0 ��
���1�� -�� �21����
� -��3-.4-�./0 ��
���1�� -�� �21����
� -��+�,5�./0 ��
���1�� -�� �21����
� -��657./0 ��
���1�� -�� �21����
� -���/+,5./0 ��
���1�� -�� �21����
� -���,4./0 ��
���1�� -�� �21����
� -��3�����8����������9�8���:����
�9����;<����1����8��<
�;���� �����8��<
�;���� =��8 7���8����������9�8��������
�9����;<���������8��<
�;���������9����>�����8����������9�8��������
�9����;<�����?@��
�;��8��<
�;���������9�����A�7���8����������9�8��������
�9����;<���������8��<
�;��������?@��
�;��8��<
�;���������9��:��8A������@��������B
������6�
��C;<���D:��������C9����B��@E�?8�
���8��9��B��@�?�����99�
��������������@����
��F��8����;;�
�;���8�A4��G����
����;��F�A�38�
���8��<
�;�����?����:���������
��8����<<�@�����9�8����������
������;����
�;��8���������������8��9���;������8������>������:���?6�
��C;<���D:��������C9����B��@E>�?8�
��@���?��8��8��9��B��@����F��������F�
�����<
��9��
��@��AFA��8
���;��-B�A

Page 47

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***������+���,����������������+������-�����.+�,�/���.��+�����0�1��/�����+����1��1����0
�,�������0�
-���
23456�
����,� ��,��6,��/��,� 7����8������9�
�+ :; <�: <:���������������������,,�������������////=>?5@�?A5�BC>?3B?DE�3FF@5EEG������H���,9�
��
��,� ;������.�I/��
���8���
�1����/��
���.� �
0��H��������/��
��,�����
��-��
�	���1��� GJK�LMI�����
/ N������O��H��,	�
�����M�1��1����,9�
�P���Q��.�R ��S��KTUSMV	WJ�V�����H���1�����H���+�
��/�P���Q��.�R �
�/��������1��XYZXZ[=\�\=[]̂2_̀=\�XY=a][=[�[bX=Yc][ZY�dZ2[=2̀��.�.�����+��1���������
,�����+��0
�0���������H�����0
�,��������0�
-���
�9����00���������+����+�
��/e�W��1�
���1��/f�9/��+��0
�0���������H�����0
�,�������0�
-���
g������1+,��������+���00��1����J���
��1����,9�
���
�1���������
,�P���Q��.�R V���+��1���������
,�����
��/���9,�����f��Q��+��0
�0���������H�����0
�,�������0�
-���
���
�����h�/���,�
���
��1�h��
�h/��
�
���
��1�hi[5B?jC>�kl�Cm�nk_\bò�=2̀=Ỳ_]2a=2̀��H+��H+���/����������
���,�����
���
-�1��f�1��-�����f��
���+�
�����
���,�����
�,���
���1���
/�����+����������+��0
�,������+��,/�H�-��
�������1��1�
�����
��0�1�����1+���
��p�-������
,�����9�����/�+��H��������������11�
����+��0
�,������
��1���
/�����+����������+��0
�,�����.+�1+�,/�H�-��
�������1��1�
�����
��0�1�����1+���
��f�
�H
���������.+��+�
�/����������1+���
������+-��11��������+��0
�,����f���
��q,0���P9��������q1����-��/R������/��
���,�r�����/f����,����
�
���
�1����H��H
��0����1�H,9���H�,1+�������1isSg

Page 48

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+,-./01�23�04�526789+�:9;<=+;+�>9;�7:;?�@7�@6;�:8AB=C+.D1EDFE�GDHI�>1E�@/J/1KI��LMNO ��
���P�� Q�� �RP����
� Q�� S�T����U��V������R�W��
�X��XYZ�[�ZVZ\�]̂P��_�������̀�V�T�����������
��W���̀������W��a��Y�aW���̀�����������W��b
�U��������c���������
��W��X��T��̀ZdeQ�MNO ��
���P�� Q�� �RP����
� Q��fQMLQ�MNO ��
���P�� Q�� �RP����
� Q��d�eg�MNO ��
���P�� Q�� �RP����
� Q��hgiMNO ��
���P�� Q�� �RP����
� Q���NdegMNO ��
���P�� Q�� �RP����
� Q���eLMNO ��
���P�� Q�� �RP����
� Q��������̀��������T
������h�
��jUb���[c��������jX����T��̀_�aW�
���W��X��T��̀�a�����XX�
��������������̀����
��V��W����UU�
�U���W�Z

Page 49

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+�������
����,��-�.�/0�
��1������������������0��2
�,��������3���2�������0��,�,3�
�����-�������������
������,����
�,��0���������������0��4���,������0������5������3���67�
��8,2���93��������84����:��1;5�60�
��1���6��0��0��4��:��1����-��������-�
�����2
��4��
��1��.-.��0
���,��<:�.=>?@ABC�DE�BF�GDHIJKL=ILM�NOPKJQIRK=S��4
�3���0�����2��1��������������T�����2
�,�����0�����
���4�����-��3U�4��:��V;�W���
��X�������
���4�����-��3U�4��:���93545�5�;Y����0�
�����2��1���6�����T�����2
�,����������
���4�����-��3U�4��:�����-��0�
.Z.������
���22����,���5����������,2��1������0��2
�,�����6����
�4��:���
����-�����0��Y�4�����-�[4�����\���4�����-���2������2
�:�����-�����
-������5�2
�:�����-����������4�0������2��2���60��
���
��T5�,�������-��0��
�������
�-����
�����1���0�
�
���:���,���
�.����.�]
����-��0���3��
�-��
�1�
��
��0��������������0��̂�,���0�1�����
:��.�]0���
����-�,����3��
�4�
����931�61�������0�
��22�
��
���������1���,;����,���:��3�����
����2�4������2���
�_���������	���4������4�
��
�����0�
���������4�
�����0����4�����-���0�
��1��
�9����0��4��������������
����-;�6��0���̀a�0��
�.�����������3;�]0��2
�:����������4
�,���������
��
\.�[���]b��1���,�6����3������2�
��������0��2
�,��������
�4�
�����,-����0���3��
���������
��2�
�������\Z��1�.���̀.���]b��,-���6����3��2
�:���������0��2���4�������0�
�
��2����3�����0�
���������������2
4��43����������1�4���6��0���̀a�0��
������
�_�������
���40��,-��5���3U�4������0��2
�:�����������0��S	[.4;�	�3��4�����1c.�[����4������
�-����
�6����3��,�����������0��2
�,��������,���:��3�������0����0�
���������
�_����.�;�]0��2
�:����������2�3��4������4�.̂�[�
�-����
����
�����������4�0���6����3��,�����������0��2
�,����.�]0��
�-����
��0���3���8,���������
�-��
�3����31��0�����1�,�-�
dS	������0�����������,������40��8,�������6����3������
��������0��
�-����
.�]0��
�-����
�6����3��,���:��3�����
����2�4�����31��0��	���4�������0�
�
��2����3�����0�
��1.

Page 50

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***�+�,-��.
���/��������/-���
����
�0�-
012�,-��.
�0�����3������.�����-����4���5��.���/62�,-���0�����-������/����0�
�.�
/-���4��/�-���..�
�����7������
��-��4������58��-�6�3����7���9�����
�.
��������-��
�4�8����.
�:���-���-�6�
��;<�6�
���
�����
2���<2�	����
��3����7��������.�6��:����4�/����0�
������-��=�-����4���5�.���/62���2�,-�����6���
0�������������/������-��3����7��//�.�������-��.
�0�����
���.��.�
�8�>?�.-���@/
���
�:��4���/��/��8�0����
6�AB�C�/
���7�
��4��-��=	D����-���4
02EFGHIJK�LM�JN�OLPQRSE�QP�TSUQPERVWRXPY�SPRXRZSUSPR�RQ�[QV\�XP�R]S�̂\
Page 51

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+,-.-/010,-�-2�32456.11.748-.2,�9-8-:9�;24�.,<.=.<:8/�8>>/.?8,-9�8,<�8>>/.?8-.2,9�;421�>84-,049@.>9�3@.?@�840�,2-�/.1.-0<�/.8A./.-B�>84-,049@.>9C��D���E��E��FG�����H��I����HG�������J������
�������J���������K
���
�I�K�LI�����
������������I��MN�LI�C���O� ���������IJ���I��
�PI�������J�����L�
Q�����I��MNR��
���O� �����HS�E������E���������K
�J�����P�I�F��
�I�
��
�F�����P�L�
Q�
�����P�����I��E

G��P����������E���H���� E��J��GT��D�G�K
�F�������E��E������������
��K�E�������KK��E�����F�������
����
�U�DK
�����VW�L����H�E�F����J��������I��I����
�E��������H��������������L�
Q�����I��MNT��DKK��E����F������F����
����I���I�G�IJ�����������F�������L�
Q�����I��MN����
��������HS�E������E���������K
�J�����P��I�F��
�F�����P�L�
Q�
�����P�����I��E

G��P����������E���H���E��J��GT�XI�G�����I��������������L��LG�C�VY�HG�K
�J����P�L��I��I���KK��E�����E�K�����
��E�����E�K��������I����E�F������������H���L�ZLI�EI����������������H��E�
������Y[��
��Y�HG�K
�J����P��I��
�\�I
��E���\������H����I����E�����P���I�
��G����E

G������EI�EQ�����P��I����F������E���������
�PI�����L�
Q�EI�EQ��P���
J�E��Z����H���LYT�]2?:10,-9�3@.?@�<012,9-48-0�0,-.-/010,-�-2�3245�.,�-@0�̂_��O� D���̀K�
����
�E�

����K��K�
���I�L��P��I��I����
[��
��K�
�����F�������I��K��K�
�����I��EI��������I��� I����
[����D�a
����I�E���b����
��E���b�������I��MN�������������IJ��P��I��
�PI�����H��������I��MN�cK���������� �����H���L�H����LI�EI���E����������I��K��K�
�����E�KGdT���O� D���̀K�
����
�E�

����K��K�
���
���������������G�E
���I�L��P��I��I����
[��
��K�
�����F�������I��K��K�
��� ���I��EI��������I��I����
[����������������e�
�K���eE���F�E�D
��E����
G��
��L��b�
���T���O� D�f�P���
�������
����E����
���E�F����E�
���G��P�K�
F�����
������E���������HG��I����F������E�������������� ����e�
�K���eE���F�E�D
��E����
G��
��L��b�
���T���O� D�	�
F�����f������E���
���������HG��I����F������E������I���F��G�F�FH�
����������������e�
�K����� eE���F�E�D
��E����
G��
��L��b�
���T���O� D�?:440,-�a��F��
�E�gFF�P
�����h�E�F����Za��F��
�E�f������E��	�
F��Y��������HG��I����F������E������I��� I����
�����E���P��I���I��K�
�����F���������L��������G������������G�����I��MN[��
�I�������F����F�������I��
��� ��G�����I��MNT��O� D�?:440,-�K��K�
������
��������I�L��I���I��I����
�����̀�FK���
�F��FF�P
�����E���
��[�������L��������G�� �����������G�����I��MN[�I���I��
�PI�����H��������I��MN[��
�I�������F����F�������I��
���G�����I��MNT�O� D�?:440,-�gFF�P
�����������h�E�F�����������HG��I����F������E������I��I����
�L��I�������
��F����� ����E���P��I���I���F���K�
����������L��������G������������G�����I��MN��
�I�������F����F�������I��
���G����� �I��MN[�3@0,�>42<:?0<�.,�?21A.,8-.2,�3.-@�������E�����E�F����P�J��P��I��K�
������K�
F�����i�������� g���
�E����FH�
�����I��
��F���������HG��j�J�
�F����P��EG��
��K
�J������FK��G�
T��O� D�H�
�I��
���K�����E�
����E��������������I��MN[�3@0,�>42<:?0<�.,�?21A.,8-.2,�3.-@�������E�����E�F����� P�J��P��I��K�
������K�
F�����i������g���
�E����FH�
�����I��
��F���������HG��j�J�
�F����P��EG�� �
��K
�J������FK��G�
T�O� D�H�
�I��
���K�����E�
����E��������������I���I�����g�����[��I��g�����������
�g
�����3@0,�>42<:?0<�.,��� ?21A.,8-.2,�L��I�������E�����E�F����P�J��P��I��K�
������K�
F�����i������g���
�E����FH�
�����I��
��� �F���������HG��j�J�
�F����P��EG��
��K
�J������FK��G�
T�O� D�E�
����E������
�P���
������
����
�����������a
����I�E���b��[�3@0,�>42<:?0<�.,�?21A.,8-.2,�3.-@���� ����E�����E�F����P�J��P��I��K�
������K�
F�����i������g���
�E����FH�
�����I��
��F���������HG���� j�J�
�F����P��EG��
��K
�J������FK��G�
T�

Page 52

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+� ,�-.//012�3��3�
������
��������4�5��4���4��4����
�������5��������6�����4��78�������9�

����6����5������� 5�
:�������������;<�9������9���������3
�=�����>��4��4����
��
�?�����>�5�
:�
�����>�����4��9

6��>���������� ��9���;���9��=��6@���+� ,�-.//012�A��?��
�9�B??�>
�����C�9�?����DA��?��
�9�E������9��	�
?��F��������;6��4����?������9������4��� 4����
�54�94�����9�����4���4���?���3�
����9��9�

����6���6�����4��78����������5������5�
:�
������������ �4��9

6��>����������9���;���9��=��6@�+� ,�-.//012�E������9���
���������;6��4����?������9������3�
����54���������������������G�
�3���G9���?�9��� ,
��������
��5��H�
����;���54�������?��6�?�?;�
������94����������
�54��4����
�=��=��
�>4����
�� 
������9�@�+� ,�-.//012�B??�>
�����������C�9�?����9�������>��34���>
34��������;6��4����?������9������4��4����
��� 5��4�������
��?��������9���>��4���4���?���3�
����?6���6�����4��78I����������5������5�
:������������� ��;<�9�������9���������3
�=�����>��4��4����
��
�?�����>�5�
:�
�����>�����4��9

6��>����������9���;���9��=��6��� JK01�L/MN.-0N�O1�-MPQO1R2OM1�JO2K�������9�����9�?����>�=��>��4��3�
������3�
?�����S������B���
�9���� ��?;�
�����4��
��?���������;6��T�=�
�?����>��96��
��3
�=������?3��6�
@�+� ,���
����9������,33��9����I�U0VV�2KR1�W�PM12KV�MUNI��������;6��4����?������9������
�
�>�������XYDZF��
���D�F��� ����4��B??�>
�����DG�
�3���G9���?�9�,
�F�E�>����������X[I������3�
����54����������������������� G�
�3���G9���?�9�,
���������
��5��H�
����;���54�������?��6�?�?;�
������94����������
�54��4���� ��
�=��=��
�>4������
������9�@��+� E����;����=����9���4���4��3�
����4�������������>�33��9��������=
6��4��
�3�
?����������;������4��78��� 5��4��4����?������9����94����4����?������9��9:��5���>�?���������
��
�3
�������3���>���=����9�I��
��� 
����;����=����9���4���4��3�
����4����33����
��?�����
��=��
�=��5�3�����>�������??�>
������� ��9�����I���94�����33����
��?�����
��=��
�=��5�
���
��9����?;�
@�+� E����;����=����9���4���3�
����54���������������������G�
�3���G9���?�9�,
��������
��5��H�
����;����� 54�������?��6�?�?;�
������94����������
�54��4����
�=��=��
�>4������
������9������\�
9����>��
��6�
�>4������� �4��78���9�����>]̂��+� �=����9������4��33��9������5���������6�_���94����3��3�
�I��+� �=����9������4��
�
�������4�3�5��4��4��G�
�3���G9���?�9�,
���?��6�?�?;�
�_��@>@��?

�>���� 9�
����9��I�9�=���3
���
�4�3�9�
����9����
�;�
�4�9�
����9��I����+� �=����9���4���4��G�
�3���G9���?�9�,
���������4���
�>4�����3�
?�����
������9������4��78��
���������� ����4�������5��>�����4�6�4=��;��������4��78���
�?�
���4��Z�?���4�]�D�F� 5�
:��>��@>@��?3��6?����9���
9�I�5>�����3�I������
��
�?��4���?3��6�
I�D��F� ����̂�?3��6����@>@�9���
9��I���=��9��I��
��������99������5��4��;�:I�D���F� ����6��>��@>@������
��
�?��4���94���I�9����>���
����=�
���6�����=����9����������9����������̀��
�D�=F� ����̂�����9������@>@�;�:�����?����@�a?��6�?�?;�
�����G�
�3���G9���?�9�,
����������54��
������6��>��
�����9���6�����3�������?��������3
�=�����=����9���4���4��G�
�3���G9���?�9�,
�������������6��?��6�?�?;�
��4����9�?3
�4����=����9:���������
�9������4��78@�b4���9����9������3
�=���?���9������
�9��3���96I���G�B��9
���
����XI�����
��Z���
?@�c/OdO1RU�NM-.P012V�P.V2�1M2�Q0�V012�2M�UO-01VO1d�R.2KM/O2O0Ve�B���4����9�?����9�3��������3��3�
�I��9�36�����4�������5��>�3>����4�����;��3
�=����]̂�D�F��6�3>��9�������>��4��4����
���3�
��������������9�����>���������6̀�D��F��6�3>��9�������>��4��4����
���34���>
34̀�D���F��6�3>��9�������>��4��4����
�����>���
�̀�D�=F��6�3>��9�������>��4����������\3�
6̀����D=F��6�3>��9�������>�����
?���������9���>��4��4����
�4��3�
?��������������
��
�
�?�������4��78�������3�
?���������5�
:@���

Page 53

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+���,����-�.������������/��/�
�0��-�/1�����,��2,������-�.�����,�����3��/
�4����5�6��
�
�7,�����2�
8�2����3��-,�-8�����/
�����1��
���-�����7�//��-���������,���-�������4��4�����-,�-8��7�1��
��..�7
�����������2��,��,����.������-�5�9��.1���,�
2�����,
������
.�����2��,��,����.������-�5�6��
���-��-��//��-�����2��������3������
.�����������1���,4��-�./�����2��,��,���7����-�5�����:;<=�>??@A=�;BC@B=�D@EFG�G;�H;DI�AF=AI@BE�J=DK@A=���L�������
���4�����/
�4����7��-�/1�����,����-�.������������3�4�0�//��-����.1���.����
����,��
�
�7,�����2�
8�31����2��7��,����-�����7���,�
��1����-

1������-,�-8�2��,��,����.������-���������
�7,�����2�
8�-,�-8��7���
4�-�5����M����.����
����,��
�
�7,�����2�
8�4���,����.������-���������
�7,�����2�
8�-,�-8��7���
4�-�0�//��-�����,�������-���������,���//��-������,��
��N��7����,
��-����O/
�4���������,�.��/���--�����7��,����
4�-����,��/�PQQ22257�45�8Q/
�4�N
�7,�N��N2�
8R�2,�-,0����7�2��,��,��//��-��S���������3�
�,�O/
�4�����2��,����,���//��-����R0�2�������2��,����-�����7���,�
��1����-

1������,��-,�-85����+���
��
�������3���,��,��//��-��S��
�7,�����2�
80��,��-,�-8�2����������������-����,���,��//��-���������2������2�
8�����,��T������U��7��.�������������3V�-������-���������/
�4�����7��,�.��
�.�����7�2�
8�
�����7�����,��-

1��7����������-���3���-��4��15���L���������-,�-8�2��������3��/����3���������-�
-�.���-���3�-�����������//��-����2����,4�����..�7
������������,��-��3��-,�-8���������5�M,����.������-���������
�7,�����2�
8�-,�-8��7���
4�-�����������2,������
.�������Q�
���-�.��������//��-����2�������������
��
����--�����,����
4�-�5�L//��-����2,��
����3�������3������,
��-�����
�.��,����
4�-���,�������3.���-�/1���-�.���������������3�4�5���W=AG@;B�XY�;?�XZ[>\]W�>[�̂]_̀ ab\]c�][\]̂\bd[e][\

Page 54

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+����
,������-�.���.�/01234506�0750/54879075:�-�����������;�<��=� 	�>�<������.��.�����
�?��
�����
�-�
��
,�.���@��A�����B<�������CD�������>��>E�-
�F������;���;�������.���� ����������G.����H��D�=� I��,�<������.��.�����
�?��
�����
�J���K��
K-
���������,��G;�@������;�������.�,,����>�-
�,������@��A�����BD�������� �CD�������>��>�-
�F������;���;�������.������������G.����H�������;���
L����
�MN�L����.�����������;���� �.
�����L��
�,��-�
����A;�����
��-����@�����
��;��-
�,����O����M@N�����
����;���.;���.;��.
�����L�@������� @>�L��.������.�����
���L�D�=� +����
��-�
���L��F����<������.��.�����
�?��
�����
�-�
��
,�.���@��A�����BD�������CD�������>��>E�-
�F������� �;���;�������.������������G.����P���D�����=� Q�G��L��
�R
������L�S���
���,���<�������.��.�����
�?��
�����
��.������E��G;�@�������
����-�>����T
�.�KU�,���� A
������LE��
��
����>���A
������L�@��A�����BD�������CD�������>��>E�-
�F������;���;�������.������������� �G.����P���D���,@�������L;���L��-�
���V������������.������E��G;�@�������
����-�>�A;�.;�.�,@�����@�G��L��
��� A
������L�A��;������
�,�
��,
����
���V�
����.���@������@�G��L��
�A
������L�����
���,����
�;�
��;������ �����
��-�
���L��F���D�=� W�F��,���.<������.��.��-�
,����������
�?��
�����
<��� �-�
��
,�.�������,-���������F��,���.�@��A�����BD�������CD�������>��>E�����>�-
�,����D��� �-�
��
,�.�����,-���������F��,���.�@��A�����BD�������CD�������>��>����-
�,�������;�
��������������� �.�;�����
�.����,-���������;����-
�,����E�-
�F������;���;�������.������������G.����H��D��� �-�
��
,�.�����,-���������F��,���.�@��A�����BD�������CD�������>��>E�����A�
X-�.���;����������� ��.���������������.�;�������;����-
�,����E�-
�F������;���;�������.������������G.����H��D���� �-�
��
,�.�����,-���������F��,���.�@��A�����BD�������CD�������>��>E�����.;�
.;�;��E�F���L��;��E��� .�,,����>�;��E��
���;�
���,��
�.�,,����>�-
�,����E��;�����������.������@>��-
�,�������.��.������������ �.�;��E�-
�F������;��MN��;�������.������������G.����H��E����M@N��;���
L����
�L����.���������
��;���� -�
��
,�.���
�,��-�
����A;�����
��-����@�����
��;��-
�,����D��� �-�
��
,�.�����,-���������F��,���.�@��A�����BD�������CD�������>��>E����;�����K
����������-
�,������ ���M�N����.����;�
��>E��
�M��N���.;���E��
�M���N��;��-���E�-
�F������;��MN��;�������.������������G.����H��E��� ���M@N��;���
L����
�L����.���������
��;��-�
��
,�.������;��
���F���-
�,������
�,<�M�N��;����.���� ��;�
��>�.��.�
���E��
�M��N��;���.;�����
�M���N��;��;���;�.
��-
�F���
���
��;��;��-���D�=� U�.�
��������.<������.��.��-�
,����������
�?��
�����
<��� �>�-�>��L����
�.�
����,���.�@��A�����BD�������CD�������>��>����-
�,�������;�
��������������.�;����� ��
�.����,-���������;����-
�,����E�-
�F������;���;�������.������������G.����H��D��� �>�-�>��L����
�.�
����,���.�@��A�����BD�������CD�������>��>E�����.;�
.;�;��E�F���L��;��E��� .�,,����>�;��E��
���;�
���,��
�.�,,����>�-
�,����E��;�����������.������@>��-
�,�������.��.������������ �.�;��E�-
�F������;��MN��;�������.������������G.����H��E����M@N��;���
L����
�L����.���������
��;���� -�
��
,�.���
�,��-�
����A;�����
��-����@�����
��;��-
�,����D��� �>�-�>��L����
�.�
����,���.�@��A�����BD�������CD�������>��>E����;�����K
����������-
�,��������M�N���� ��.����;�
��>E��
�M��N���.;���E��
�M���N��;��-���E�-
�F������;��MN��;�������.������������G.����H��E����M@N�� �;���
L����
�L����.���������
��;��-�
��
,�.������;��
���F���-
�,������
�,<�M�N��;����.����;�
��>��� .��.�
���E��
�M��N��;���.;����-
�-
����
��
�M���N��;��;���;�.
��-
�F���
���
��;��;��-���D�

Page 55

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***+� ,�-�.������-��-�����
�/��
�����
�0�
��
1�-���2��3�����45�������65�������7��78�0
�9������:���:���� �����-������������;-����<��5���3�9�
8��0�
��
1�-��3:�-:�1������������������
���1����
�1������ ��-���2��5�+� �
����-��9��7��;�10�����.������-��-�����
�/��
���2��3�����45�������65�������7��78�3��:������1�������� �����-����=����
.������ �7�����
���1�����>��?�0�-������:��0
�1���������:����-����:�
��7�3:�
���:������
���1�������0
�9������ 27��
����2�:�������:����-����:�
��7@���� �7�����
���1�����>��?�0�-������:��:��0����0
�1���������:��:���:�-
��0
�9���
�3:�
���:���� ����
���1�������0
�9�����27��
����2�:�������:��:���:�-
��0
�9���
@���� �7�����
���1�����>��?�0�-������:��0
�1���������:���-:����3:�
���:������
���1�������0
�9�����27��
��� ���2�:�������:���-:����0
�0
����
@������ �7�����
���1����A�;-�����?����1������2�;��?��
�3
������?�����
���1���B��>��?�0�-������
9�����?��� -�
-��8�0
�9������:��AB�����>���0�-��3��:����1�9�2�����
�-��
���:��--�11�������:�������-�8������ A2B��:���:���
9�����?�-�
-���:������2������-��������:���1���������
�1�
���:���4�-����-���9���7�5�CDEFGHI�JK�HL�JKMNOPQRS�TQSNUVCW:�������1����2��0�������:����:�
��75�X��7���-�10������:��00��-�����������8�7���1����07����27���2����
�-
�����-
�5	
�1�����Y�-��-��Z����
������
1�����27��:��������1����-�
��2���9��������:��0
�1����5�W������������0
�1�����������1����-�
��2���9����?������:��[�����������-��\?��-7��������:��0.]]33359�5?�95�>]2�������̂
���]����;5:�1���_���\�̀�a��b[����cd6���������������������������ce��5���_���_�̀�cd6�e����c66��������������������������ce��5���_�����̀�c66��e����c4f�������������������������c6e<5���_���,�̀�c4f��e����ce�<�����������������������cd<�5��g�_���h�̀�ce�<��e�����9�
���������������������ci6<5��g���gX���:��0
�1�����
��2���9����������_����,��
�h�����:��0
�1��������0
�1
��7��������
��:��-����10���������-�:�������:��0
�1������:���7��
�
��
�/��
������07��:�?:�
���������_���,�̀�c4f��e����ce�<�����������������������c���5���_���h�̀�ce�<��e�����9�
���������������������ce8��<5�����W:�
��������;�10������
�1��:��071���������������
�����������:��0
�9���������
�?����������
���1������-:�
-:�:���8�-:0���:�����
�0
�1�����������1��
����
�8�9���?��:���8�0
��:��
�-�11����7�:���8��
���:�
�0
�1�����������1��
����
�5�W:��-��������-�����3��:��:������-��-���3����2��1���27�-���
��j�9�
�1���5�X�8�:�3�9�
8��:����-��-��������:�
������:����������:��0
�1�������
��:����00�7�����-�:����
��:��0
�9���������������?:��
��
��:1���8������3����2��
�/��
��5����-:����������;�:���
1�-����?���
���;�10���
�1��:����������-�����3��:��:����:�
����������
�?����������
���1����3:�
���:������
���1�������0
�9�����27�������:���-:�����
�-����?�������
��:��0�
0���������:���-:�����
�-����?�5���X��7����0�
�����
?���9����7���
����2k�-�����\,,XWX�a\Y������2�����0����:����12�
����������-�����7�������1�����0-��7�<���̀�������������������������������������ce8���5����0-��7�e�����̀ed�������������������������������c�8���5����0-��7�e<���̀e���������������������������������cd8���5����0-��7������̀����������������������������������c48���5����0-��7�6����̀6���������������������������������cei8���5����0-��7�d����̀d���������������������������������c�d8���5����0-��7�<����̀<���������������������������������c6�8���5����0-��7�i����̀i���������������������������������cd�8���5����0-��7�f����̀f���������������������������������cd48���5���

Page 56

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

������� !�"#�$�%# &���'�%() ***�+,��-�.����/.���������������������������������0123���4����+,��-�����������5�
�������������������������0263���4��7�8���9�����:0; <=14��>?@ABCBDEFG
H I�JKL������
������������������,�3���M������,��5�,���������������+������5���1�����N������
���,��3�����
���,�����=1.�����N����,�����O�,�����<3����9P������������9��������
����,����,�����L��N��N���++��,����4Q�,P��O��N���M�R�����,����-���N5��
����������
�������N��M�5����,�
����QN�����,������N�����M��,�9+������M-��N��++��,��3��������-�����L�
���ST��S�����N��U��������SV
��-�����O����,���O����M�N�������N��++��,��WX7�8�����9� Y��N�

��7��+,��- V��N�
�����O���7�Z�� �� [== [���=������������������99�������������----V������N�
���O���
-��,��-��\
�������N���-���������������N�������L��O]�=4��5���N�����
9����-��
�,�9+���
�M-�,��,P��O�����K�5���444�4�Y��M,P�����N��+�]KKLLL4O�54�PK++�-/��
//��,��,�K+
�9����/��,��,�KM

�L/��/��
����K++�-/=�����+�����N�����������,��������L��N�-��
�++��,����4Z��\����
O������9P����
��-���N5�����-��
���++�
���O���,�9�����������N��4ED�Ê�BG�F__?G@?�AEB̀A?�DF�̂abbBCc�@FGdE@DEFG�DF�B�_EG?�F_�BGc�BbFaGD�aG>?C�̂?@DEFG�Hef�F_�Dg?�AE@?ĜEGh�B@D�ijjkl�DF�bBm?�B�_BÂ?�̂DBD?b?GD�EG�FC�EG�@FGG?@DEFG�nEDg�DgÊ�BooAE@BDEFG����ED�Ê�BG�F__?G@?�aG>?C�̂?@DEFG�ip̀�F_�Dg?�EbbEhCBDEFG�B@D�HqrH�_FC�B�o?ĈFG�DF�nFCm�ng?G�Dg?c�mGFnl�FC�gBd?�C?B̂FGB̀ A?�@Bâ?�DF�̀?AE?d?l�DgBD�Dg?c�BC?�>ÊsaBAE_E?>�_CFb�>FEGh�̂F�̀c�C?B̂FG�F_�Dg?EC�EbbEhCBDEFG�̂DBDât�DgF̂?�ngF�?boAFc�BG�B>aAD�nEDgFaD�A?Bd?�FC�ngF�Ê�̂à u?@D�DF�@FG>EDEFĜ�B̂�DF�?boAFcb?GD�nEAA�̀?�AEB̀A?�DF�B�@EdEA�o?GBADc�aG>?C�̂?@DEFG�He�F_�Dg?�EbbEhCBDEFGl�B̂cAab�BG>�GBDEFGBAEDc�B@D�ijjv�BG>�oaĈaBGD�DF�̂?@DEFG�iH�F_�Dg?�̂Bb?�B@Dl�nEAA�̀?�@FbbEDDEGh�BG�F__?G@?�ng?C?�Dg?c�>F�̂F�EG�Dg?�mGFnA?>h?l�FC�nEDg�C?B̂FGB̀ A?�@Bâ?�DF�̀?AE?d?l�DgBD�Dg?�?boAFc??�Ê�>ÊsaBAE_E?>

Page 57

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



����������	
����
��������
����
��������������

�������� ���!"#$%%��&���
���
��&����'(�
)���%��	*'����%
�+���
�
���
��&�,-���	*'����.���
��&�	*'���������	*'������/�
�������&���	*'������/�
����������0��������'����('�����$%%
�+���������,

�
�'���1�2��0�1����*���1���3 � 4 5 6 7 8 9 � :� :: :� :4 :5 :6 :7 :8 :9 :� �� �: ;�<��=

Page 58

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



Page 59

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1

User
Line

User_1
Line

User_2
Line

User_3
Line

User_4
Line

User_5
Line

User_6
Rectangle

User_7
Typewritten Text
= LICENSED AREA

User_8
Oval

User_9
Typewritten Text
= EXTINGUISHER

User_10
Typewritten Text
FIRE EXIT

User_11
Oval

User_12
Oval



�����������	�
������
������� �������������������� �!�"#$%��!&�&$'��())�*�+'� �,�""'-�.��/0"��11��(23�4�/��������

Page 60

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



��������������	
���������������������������������������� ����!�"��#$���%%���&'�(�#���������

Page 61

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



�

�������	�
��	�	���� ��������������������� �!�"�	�� #$
%� &'�&�
(#()
#*+,#-� .���/
0������"123�4�� 56�//�/�
7��6���8��/
9&:&�&/�&
%!'�&�
;<=>(#()>#*)?
 @A
BCDE
EFAGCHG
IAJF
EFKLMHIN
OKHFAPAQG
RQQKHC
EFCLCSGCT
MJGAUMGKH
TAVSDAMT
AQ
GBKP
EKHGJFC
QFAU
GBC
WSGCFSCGX




YZ[[\]̂_̀̂ab[̀cdd
Y\[\bef
g\b̀h_i
j\]̀ 
kZii
lbmc
no[cco
YZ[[\]̂_̀̂ab[̀cdd
pqrs
tpl
k_
nZ̀u[Zv
wxyxzx{|x
}~��xz
�
Yg��t�tr���r�
��|����{
�
nfcii
pZmciZ̀u
�Z[Zec
q��c�
�\Zu
YZ[[\]̂_̀̂ab[̀cdd
gb��[_Z
pqrs
�pa
�z������
�
q��i_hZo_\̀
�\[
Z
�[c�_dcd
i_hc̀hc
b̀uc[
p_hc̀d_̀e
qho
t���
̂
o\
Zii\]
�\[
ofc
dZic
\�
Zih\f\i
o\
�c
h\̀db�cu
\��
ofc
�[c�_dcd
jfc
dZic
\�
Zih\f\i
_̀
ofc
�Z̀ c̀[
�[\�\dcu
u\cd
̀\o
_��Zho
b�\̀
ofc
�iZ̀ _̀̀e
doZobd
\�
ofc
�_ii_̀e
doZo_\̀�
�
]_ii
Zddb�c
ofZo
ofc
_��i_hZo_\̀d
\�
dcii_̀e
Zih\f\i
o\
u[_�c[dv
o\ecofc[
]_of
ofc
hb[[c̀o
o[c̀u
\�
ofc
�[c�_dcd
�c_̀e
Z
�\hZi
�\_̀o
�\[
i\hZi
�\bofdv
Z[c
_ddbcd
ofZo
]_ii
�\[�
�Z[o
\�
ofc
\�c[Zii
i_hc̀d_̀e
Zddcdd�c̀o
Z̀u
�[c�_dcd
�Z̀Zec�c̀o
[ce_�c�
[ceZ[ud


Page 63

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



���������	�
����	�
����������������������������������
��������������	
������������� ���
�������������������� ���!��"�#$%%#$%%%&'��(����"�����)����	��*������)+	�)�������"�������,���)+	�)��� ��

�����
+�����-�	-���	,����������./0123456785/9� � � �� ��

������:429�;4246<�;27/=�:>?��� � � � � � � � � @4A<B�CD�E78<01<2�CFCG�� � � � � � � � � H/2�I<J<2<K.<BLM>GNO?PFCQFCROS@����TU�V�!�!WTU��W!X��!�!V!T�Y��V!XT�W!Y��W�(U�WUZ���!�[##'��\�(]W�(�"�������
��������������	
̂��������	��̂�����	_̀�
̀���
���̂���a��b��)��c�2<J<2�A7�Ad<�4==e3.4A37K�J72�Ad<�624KA�7J�4�=2<03f<f�e3.<K.<g�/Kh<2�Ad<�4178<�i.A�h4A<h�GG�E78<01<2�CFCG5��iK�4/h3A�7J�Ad<�=e4Kf�J72�Ad<�=2<03f<f�d4f�1<<K�.4223<h�7/A�4Kh�c�K7j�.7KJ320�Ad4A�?/01234�L32<�k�I<f./<�M<283.<�j3ee�K7A�1<�0493K6�4Kl�2<=2<f<KA4A37K�2<642h3K6�Ad<�4==e3.4A37K5��md3f�3f�f/1n<.A�A7�Ad<�=2<03f<f�d483K6�4�f/3A41e<�4Kh�f/JJ3.3<KA�J32<�f4J<Al�23f9�4ff<ff0<KA�4f�2<o/32<h�1l�Ad<�I<6/e4A72l�I<J720�pL32<�M4J<Alq�H2h<2�CFFD5��rKh<2�Ad3f�e<63fe4A37Kg�<8<2l�stuvwxyvz{|u�wutvxy}�zv�tu~�ztuh�A7�.422l�7/A�4�J32<�f4J<Al�23f9�4ff<ff0<KAg�7J�jd3.d�17Ad�Ad<�f36K3J3.4KA�J3Kh3K6f�4Kh�Ad<�3h<KA3Al�7J�4Kl�627/=�7J�=<2f7Kf�<f=<.34eel�4A�23f9�fd7/eh�1<�2<.72h<h5��ihh3A37K4eelg�4�2<.72h�0/fA�1<�9<=A�7J�4==27=234A<�J32<�f4J<Al�4224K6<0<KAf�J72�Ad<�<JJ<.A38<�=e4KK3K6g�7264K3f4A37Kg�.7KA27e�07K3A723K6�4Kh�2<83<j�7J�Ad<�=2<8<KA4A38<�4Kh�=27A<.A38<�0<4f/2<f5��if�4�=<2f7K�d483K6�.7KA27e�7J�f4J<Al�7K�Ad<�=2<03f<fg�Ad<�@<f36K4A<h�:2<03f<f�M/=<283f72�p@:Mq�3f�4ef7�2<f=7Kf31e<�J72�<fA41e3fd3K6g�2<.72h3K6�4Kh�30=e<0<KA3K6�Ad<f<�4224K6<0<KAf5��;/3h4K.<�7K�.70=el3K6�j3Ad�Ad<�2<6/e4A37Kf�3f�4843e41e<�3K�Ad<�2<e<84KA�{xx�|u�v�s����x�uty�uy��:/1e3.4A37K�L32<�M4J<Al��zv���vvuvv�uy�}���z����tu����z|�{|u��tx����u�����zxyut�����z�u��vx�u�1779fd7=fg� 4Kh� 1l� h7jKe74h3K6� Ad<0� J2<<� J270� Ad<� 3KA<2K<A� 4AB�dAA=fBOOjjj56785/9O678<2K0<KAO7264K3f4A37KfOh<=42A0<KA�J72�.700/K3A3<f�4Kh�e7.4e�678<2K0<KAOf<23<fOJ32<�f4J<Al�e4j�4Kh�6/3h4K.<�h7./0<KAf�J72�1/f3K<ff5���cK�4hh3A37Kg�K7Aj3AdfA4Kh3K6�4Kl�.7Kf/eA4A37K�/Kh<2A49<K�1l�?/01234�L32<�k�I<f./<�M<283.<g�l7/�04Kl�K<<h�A7�4==el�J72�4==2784e�J270�<3Ad<2�Ad<�>7.4e�i/Ad723Al��/3eh3K6�?7KA27e�72�4K�i==278<h�cKf=<.A72�4KhO72�Ad<�4==2784e�7J�4Kl�7Ad<2�17h3<f�d483K6�4�fA4A/A72l�3KA<2<fA�3K�Ad<�=2<03f<f5���

Page 65

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 3



�

�����������	��
�����	
�������
�����������������������
�����������������	��������
������������������������
�������� ��������
�������
��������
����	�
�������������
����
��� ��
�����
Page 66

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 3



�

�������	�
��	�	���� ����������
��������������  !
"#$%
&'"#$%()�����*+�),-�,�*./�	�� 0#
1�2�3���
0405
5$6778� 9��:��+��
��� ��/;<=�>�� ?+-�� �
�@@?+-��+��
��A�-�+��BCDEFEGH
IJFK
LMKKCGM
NCK
KMEO
PDQL
QROKFSM
TQRD
QDGCEFUCOFQE
CES
NM
CDM
RECVWM
OQ
XMDFPT
OJM
KMESMDY


Z[
\]̂_̀a[b̀c


[
_dè
̂_[f
̀g][h
i[bjf
kdl
m̀hh
]bj
]edhdn[̀f
ida
[̂
ò[bn
h]̂̀ 
p
m̀
m̀ à
dbhk
]m]à
di
̂_̀
]eeh[q]̂[db
]î̀a
r[f[̂[bn
̂_̀
n]a]ǹ
f_de
̂_̀
d̂_̀a
j]kc
_]r̀bŝ
f̀ b̀
]bk
bd̂[q̀f
]bkm_̀à
̀hf̀
]adlbj
̂_̀
f̂à̀ t̂


udc
f[bq̀
̂_̀
vdpwe
dèb̀j
[̂f
jddafc
m̀
_]r̀
f̀ b̀
]
f[nb[i[q]b̂hk
_[n_̀a
]gdlb̂
di
èdeh̀
ja[bx[bn
db
̂_̀
f̂à̀ 
̂iadg
od̂ ĥ̀f
]bj
m̀
]à
eà̂ k̂
flà
èdeh̀
]ffdq[]̂̀ 
̂_[f
m[̂_
lf
a]̂_̀a
̂_]b
̂_̀
vdpwet
y 
̀i[aghk
òh[̀r̀
̂_[f
m[hh
bdm
ǹ 
̂mdaf̀
̀fèq[]hhk
]f
̂_̀
̂md
qdgè^̀
m[̂_
̀]q_
d̂_̀a
db
g]bk
eadjlq̂ft


zf
]
àf[j̀b̂c
̂_̀à
[f
hd]jf
di
n]bnf
̂_]̂
_]bn
]adlbj
db
̂_̀
idàqdlâ
]bj
q]lf̀
]
bl[f]bq̀
]bj
b̀r̀a
ǹ 
̂gdr̀j
dbt
{_[f
m[hh
dbhk
ǹ 
̂mdaf̀
[i
]hqd_dh
òqdg̀ f
[brdhr̀jt
|d̂
flà
m_]̂
̂_̀
h[q̀bf̀j
̂[g̀ 
̂_̀k
_]r̀
]eeh[̀j
ida
[f
ol̂
d̂_̀a
̂_]b
dlaf̀hr̀fc
]î̀a
}~eg
̂d
olk
]hqd_dh
[̂f
̀[̂_̀a
{̀fqd
da
�̀f_
�]b̀t


zf
]
olf[b̀ffc
m̀sr̀
mdax̀j
̀�̂àg̀ hk
_]aj
̂d
q_]bǹ
dla
qlf̂dg̀ af
]bj
̂_̀[a
ò_]r[dlaf
̀fèq[]hhk
m_̀b
h̀]r[bn
̂_̀
eàg[f̀ft
y 
̀_]r̀
]hà]jk
_]j
edh[q̀
r[̀m[bn
qq̂r
jl̀
̂d
]b
]hh̀ǹj
[bq[j̀b̂
db
̂_̀
qdab̀a
hdbn
]î̀a
m̀sr̀
qhdf̀j
m_[q_
_]f
f_dmb
èdeh̀
lf[bn
dla
̀�̂̀ ab]h
f̀]̂[bn
]à]ft
y 
̀òh[̀r̀
̂_[f
qdlhj
h̀]j
̂d
lbj̀a]ǹ
ja[bx[bn
_]eèb[bn
db
dla
eàg[f̀f
m_[q_
[f
fdg̀ _̂[bn
m̀
]à
i[aghk
]n][bf̂
]bjc
m̀
jd
lf̀
jl̀
j[h[ǹbq̀
m_̀b
m̀
]à
̂a]j[bn
̂d
f̂de
]bk̂_[bn
h[x̀
̂_]̂t
zî̀a
_dlafc
dla
qdb̂adh
[f
r̀ak
h[g[̂̀jt

y 
̀mdlhj
]hfd
alb
̂_̀
a[fx
di
èdeh̀
oa[bn
[b
̂_̀[a
dmb
]hqd_dh
iadg
̂_̀
f_de
m_̀b
̂_̀k
alb
dr̀a
ida
q[n]à̂ ^̀f
m_̀b
dèb
ida
̂a]j[bn
�m_[q_
m[hh
oa[bn
gdà
ed̂ b̀̂[]h
eadoh̀gf
flq_
]f
e]ff[bn
diic
]hh̀aǹbf
̀̂q�t


y 
̀]à
]hfd
f̂[hh
̂[jk[bn
le
dl̂f[j̀
iadg
qd]q_
e]â[̀f
jadee[bn
èdeh̀
dii
]bj
̂_̀g
ja[bx[bn
dl̂f[j̀
m_[hf̂
m][̂[bn
ida
̂]�[fc
jadee[bn
od̂ ĥ̀f
db
̂_̀
e]r̀g̀ b̂
]bj
̂_̀
ad]jc
la[b]̂[bn
[b
̂_̀
olf
f_̀ĥ̀a
̀̂q
p
[i
_̂̀k
qdg̀ 
[b
_̀àc
̂_̀k
]à
àilf̀j
f̀ar[q̀
]bj
̂lab̀j
]m]kt
�
_db̀f̂hk
q]bŝ
f̀ 
̀̂_]̂
_]eèb[bn
]̂
̂_̀
n]a]ǹt


Z]r[bn
h[r̀j
_̀à
ida
b̀]ahk
�
k̀]af
]bj
lf[bn
̂_̀
n]a]ǹ
f_de
�l[̂̀
]
o[̂
]bj
f̀ [̀bn
m_]̂
]hà]jk
[f
]hhdm̀j
̂d
_]eèb
db
[̂f
idàqdlâc
�
f̂adbnhk
òh[̀r̀
f̀hh[bn
]hqd_dh
̂_̀à
m[hh
g]x̀
[̂
i]a
mdaf̀t
y_̀b
�sr̀
fedx̀b
̂d
̂_̀
èdeh̀
̂_̀à
]odl̂
[ffl̀f
�sr̀
f̀ b̀
db
̂_̀
m]k
[bc
[̂sf
oalf_̀j
diit


�
̂_[bx
q]f̀f
di
lbj̀a]ǹ
ja[bx[bnc
]b̂[pfdq[]h
ò_]r[dla
̀̂q
m[hh
dbhk
ò
̂_̀
f̂]â
di
[̂t


{_̀f̀
]à
ǹbl[b̀
[ffl̀f
]bj
[̂sf
bd̂
]odl̂
ed̂ b̀̂[]h
hdff
di
f]h̀fc
m̀
diìàj
bd
do�̀q̂[dbf
̂d
̂_̀
vdpwet
zhh
di
̂_̀
]odr̀
]à
[ffl̀f
m̀sr̀
f̀ b̀
f[bq̀t
{]hx[bn
̂d
hdq]hfc
̂_̀k
]àbŝ
]m]à
di
̂_̀
]eeh[q]̂[db
̀[̂_̀a
]f
_̂̀à
]à
bd
bd̂[q̀f
]bkm_̀à
d̂_̀a
̂_]b
̂_̀
jdda
̂d
̂_̀
n]a]ǹt



g]bk
̂_]bxf




Page 67

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 4



�

����������	�
���������������������������	���������������������������� !�����"#�!����$%&�'()*+,-.'*(�/+*0'1&1�'(�.%&�&,-'2�'3�.*�4&�.+&-.&1�-3�5*()'1&(.'-2�-(1�,-6�(*.�4&�73&1�*+�1'352*3&1�&85&/.�)*+�.%&�/7+/*3&�)*+�9%'5%�'.�%-3�4&&(�3&(.:�;)�6*7�-+&�(*.�.%&�(-,&1�+&5'/'&(.�*+�%-0&�+&-3*(�.*�4&2'&0&�.%-.�6*7�-+&�(*.�.%&�'(.&(1&1�+&5'/'&(.<�/2&-3&�(*.')6�.%&�3&(1&+�',,&1'-.&26�-(1�1*�(*.�1'352*3&�.%&�5*(.&(.3�.*�-(*.%&+�/&+3*(<�73&�'.�)*+�-(6�/7+/*3&�*+�3.*+&�*+�5*/6�.%&�'()*+,-.'*(�'(�-(6�,&1'7,:��=2.%*7>%�.%'3�&,-'2�-(1�-(6�-..-5%,&(.3�-+&�4&2'&0&1�.*�4&�)+&&�)+*,�-(6�0'+73�*+�*.%&+�1&)&5.�9%'5%�,'>%.�-))&5.�-(6�363.&,�'(.*�9%'5%�.%&6�-+&�*/&(&1�*+�+&5&'0&1<�'.�'3�.%&�+&3/*(3'4'2'.6�*)�.%&�+&5'/'&(.�.*�5%&5?�.%-.�.%&6�-+&�0'+73�)+&&�-(1�.%-.�.%&6�9'22�'(�(*�9-6�-))&5.�363.&,3�-(1�1-.-:�@*�+&3/*(3'4'2'.6�'3�-55&/.&1�46�A+&&(&�B'(>�)*+�-(6�2*33�*+�1-,->&�-+'3'(>�'(�-(6�9-6�)+*,�.%&'+�+&5&'/.<�*/&('(>�*+�73&:��=(6�0'&93�*+�*/'('*(3�&8/+&33&1�-+&�.%*3&�*)�.%&�'(1'0'17-2�3&(1&+�-(1�1*�(*.�(&5&33-+'26�+&/+&3&(.�.%&�0'&9�*)�.%&�3&(1&+C3�&,/2*6&+�*+�-(6�A+&&(&�B'(>�5*,/-(6:��$%&�3&(1&+�*)�.%'3�&,-'2�'3�-�,&,4&+�*)�.%&�A+&&(&�B'(>�>+*7/�*)�5*,/-('&3<�.%&�72.',-.&�/-+&(.�*)�9%'5%�'3�A+&&(&�B'(>�D','.&1�E+&>'3.&+&1�(7,4&+�FGHII<�-(1�9%*3&�+&>'3.&+&1�*))'5&�'3�-.�J&3.>-.&�K+&9&+6<�K7+6�L.�M1,7(13<�L7))*2?�;NOO�IP$Q:�$%&�5*,/-(6�(7,4&+3�*)�.%&�>+*7/C3�/+'(5'/-2�*/&+-.'(>�3743'1'-+'&3�-+&�-3�)*22*93R��A+&&(&�B'(>�K+&9'(>�-(1�S&.-'2'(>�D','.&1�EOFTUTVOQ<�A+&&(&�B'(>�S&.-'2'(>�D','.&1�EHFWHGHIQ<�N+&,'7,�X'('(>�S&3.-7+-(.3�-(1�N743�D','.&1�ELYIUIUIIQ<�L/'+'.�N74�Y*,/-(6�EZ-(->&1Q�D','.&1�EHFWTFGVQ<�L/'+'.�N74�Y*,/-(6�ED&-3&1Q�D','.&1�EHWTTHGGQ<�-(1�L/'+'.�N74�Y*,/-(6�E$+&(.Q�D','.&1�EH[GWVWUQ:��$%&�+&>'3.&+&1�*))'5&�*)�&-5%�*)�.%&3&�3743'1'-+'&3�'3�.%&�3-,&�-3�.%-.�*)�A+&&(&�B'(>�D','.&1<�3-0&�)*+�N+&,'7,�X'('(>�S&3.-7+-(.3�-(1�N743�D','.&1<�9%'5%�'3�+&>'3.&+&1�'(�L5*.2-(1�-(1�9%*3&�+&>'3.&+&1�*))'5&�'3�K&2%-0&(�K+&9&+6<�K+&9&+6�D-(&<�X7(4-+<�M-3.�D*.%'-(<�M\GF�INM:��$%'3�&,-'2�%-3�4&&(�35-((&1�)*+�3/-,�]�0'+73&3:�;)�6*7�4&2'&0&�.%'3�&,-'2�3%*721�%-0&�4&&(�3.*//&1�46�*7+�)'2.&+3<�52'5?�%&+&�.*�+&/*+.�'.:�

Page 68

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 4



Scale 1:10000.0

Created 23.12.2021

300m2001000

Off Licences

This copy has been produced specifically to enable the undertaking of
statutory and regulatory requirements imposed on (c) Crown Copyright

and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey LA100016831

PRODUCED FOR EXTERNAL COUNCIL
BUSINESS USE

Page 69

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 5

kbenson
Typewriter
Lakes Parade

kbenson_1
Typewriter
Shell Garage

kbenson_2
Typewriter
Co-Op Abbey Road

kbenson_3
Typewriter
Co-op Harrel
Lane

kbenson_4
Typewriter
Lesh Lane Stores & Lesh Lane Post Office

kbenson_5
Typewriter
Nisa

kbenson_6
Typewriter
Brighton St off licence

kbenson_7
Typewriter
Bargain Booze



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 71

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 6



Page 72

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 6



Page 73

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 6



Page 74

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 6



Page 75

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 6



Page 76

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 6



Page 77

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 49 

8. Applications for premises licences 

Relevant licensing authority 

8.1 Premises licences are issued by the licensing authority in which the premises are 

situated or, in the case of premises straddling an area boundary, the licensing authority 

where the greater part of the premises is situated. Where the premises is located 

equally in two or more areas, the applicant may choose but, in these rare cases, it is 

important that each of the licensing authorities involved maintain close contact. 

8.2 Section 13 of the 2003 Act defines the parties holding important roles in the context of 

applications, inspection, monitoring and reviews of premises licences. 

Authorised persons 

8.3 The first group –“authorised persons”– are bodies empowered by the 2003 Act to carry 

out inspection and enforcement roles. The police and immigration officers are not 

included because they are separately empowered by the 2003 Act to carry out their 

duties. 

8.4 For all premises, the authorised persons include: 

•  officers of the licensing authority; 

•  fire inspectors; 

•  inspectors with responsibility in the licensing authority’s area for the enforcement of 

the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974;  

•  officers of the local authority exercising environmental health functions 

8.5 Local authority officers will most commonly have responsibility for the enforcement of 

health and safety legislation, but the Health and Safety Executive is responsible for 

certain premises. In relation to vessels, authorised persons also include an inspector or 

a surveyor of ships appointed under section 256 of the Merchant Shipping Act 1995. 

These would normally be officers acting on behalf of the Maritime and Coastguard 

Agency. The Secretary of State may prescribe other authorised persons by means of 

regulations, but has not currently prescribed any additional bodies. If any are 

prescribed, details will be made available on the GOV.UK website. 

8.6 Where an immigration officer has reason to believe that any premises are being used 

for a licensable activity, the officer may enter the premises with a view to seeing 

whether an offence under any of the Immigration Acts is being committed in connection 

with the licensable activity.  

Responsible authorities 

8.7 The second group –“responsible authorities”– are public bodies that must be fully 

notified of applications and that are entitled to make representations to the licensing 

authority in relation to the application for the grant, variation or review of a premises 

licence. These representations must still be considered ‘relevant’ by the licensing 

authority and relate to one or more of the licensing objectives. For all premises, 

responsible authorities include: 

•  the relevant licensing authority and any other licensing authority in whose area part of 

Page 79

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



50 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

the premises is situated; 

•  the chief officer of police; 

•  the local fire and rescue authority; 

•  the relevant enforcing authority under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974; 

•  the local authority with responsibility for environmental health; 

•  the local planning authority; 

•  a body that represents those who are responsible for, or interested in, matters 

relating to the protection of children from harm; 

•  each local authority’s Director of Public Health (DPH) in England4 and Local Health 

Boards (in Wales);  

•  the local weights and measures authority (trading standards); and 

•   Home Office Immigration Enforcement (on behalf of the Secretary of State). 

8.8 The licensing authority should indicate in its statement of licensing policy which body it 

recognises to be competent to advise it on the protection of children from harm. This 

may be the local authority social services department, the Local Safeguarding Children 

Board or another competent body. This is important as applications for premises 

licences have to be copied to the responsible authorities in order for them to make any 

representations they think are relevant. 

8.9 In relation to a vessel, responsible authorities also include navigation authorities within 

the meaning of section 221(1) of the Water Resources Act 1991 that have statutory 

functions in relation to the waters where the vessel is usually moored or berthed, or any 

waters where it is proposed to be navigated when being used for licensable activities; 

the Environment Agency; the Canal and River Trust; and the Secretary of State (who in 

practice acts through the Maritime and Coastguard Agency (MCA)). In practice, the 

Environment Agency and the Canal and River Trust only have responsibility in relation 

to vessels on waters for which they are the navigation statutory authority. 

8.10 The MCA is the lead responsible authority for public safety, including fire safety, 

affecting passenger ships (those carrying more than 12 passengers) wherever they 

operate and small commercial vessels (carrying no more than 12 passengers) which go 

to sea. The safety regime for passenger ships is enforced under the Merchant Shipping 

Acts by the MCA which operates certification schemes for these vessels. Fire and 

rescue authorities, the Health and Safety Executive and local authority health and safety 

inspectors should normally be able to make “nil” returns in relation to such vessels and 

rely on the MCA to make any appropriate representations in respect of this licensing 

objective. 

8.11 Merchant Shipping legislation does not, however, apply to permanently moored vessels. 

So, for example, restaurant ships moored on the Thames Embankment, with permanent 

shore connections should be considered by the other responsible authorities concerned 

with public safety, including fire safety. Vessels carrying no more than 12 passengers 

which do not go to sea are not subject to MCA survey and certification, but may be 

licensed by the local port or navigation authority. 

                                                
4
 This change was made as a result of the commencement of measures in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 which amended 

the 2003 Act and further provision in the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public 
Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

Page 80

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 51 

8.12 The Secretary of State may prescribe other responsible authorities by means of 

regulations. Any such regulations are published on the Government’s legislation 

website: www.legislation.gov.uk. 

Other persons 

8.13 As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of 

licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or business 

entitled to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to applications for the 

grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences and club premises 

certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the premises. In addition, these 

persons may themselves seek a review of a premises licence. Any representations 

made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the representation relates to one or 

more of the licensing objectives. It must also not be considered by the licensing 

authority to be frivolous or vexatious. In the case of applications for reviews, there is an 

additional requirement that the grounds for the review should not be considered by the 

licensing authority to be repetitious. Chapter 9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10) 

provides more detail on the definition of relevant, frivolous and vexatious 

representations. 

8.14 While any of these persons may act in their own right, they may also request that a 

representative makes the representation to the licensing authority on their behalf. A 

representative may include a legal representative, a friend, a Member of Parliament, a 

Member of the Welsh Government, or a local ward or parish councillor who can all act in 

such a capacity. 

Who can apply for a premises licence? 

8.15 Any person (if an individual aged 18 or over) who is carrying on or who proposes to 

carry on a business which involves the use of premises (any place including one in the 

open air) for licensable activities may apply for a premises licence either on a 

permanent basis or for a time-limited period. 

8.16 “A person” in this context includes, for example, a business or a partnership. Licensing 

authorities should not require the nomination of an individual to hold the licence or 

determine the identity of the most appropriate person to hold the licence. 

8.17 In considering joint applications (which is likely to be a rare occurrence), it must be 

stressed that under section 16(1)(a) of the 2003 Act each applicant must be carrying on 

a business which involves the use of the premises for licensable activities. In the case of 

public houses, this would be easier for a tenant to demonstrate than for a pub owning 

company that is not itself carrying on licensable activities. Where licences are to be held 

by businesses, it is desirable that this should be a single business to avoid any lack of 

clarity in accountability. 

8.18 A public house may be owned, or a tenancy held, jointly by a husband and wife, civil 

partners or other partnerships of a similar nature, and both may be actively involved in 

carrying on the licensable activities. In these cases, it is entirely possible for the 

husband and wife or the partners to apply jointly as applicant for the premises licence, 

even if they are not formally partners in business terms. This is unlikely to lead to the 

same issues of clouded accountability that could arise where two separate businesses 

Page 81

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



52 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

apply jointly for the licence. If the application is granted, the premises licence would 

identify the holder as comprising both names and any subsequent applications, for 

example for a variation of the licence, would need to be made jointly. 

8.19 A wide range of other individuals and bodies set out in section 16 of the 2003 Act may 

apply for premises licences. They include, for example, Government Departments, local 

authorities, hospitals, schools, charities or police forces. In addition to the bodies listed 

in section 16, the Secretary of State may prescribe by regulations other bodies that may 

apply and any such regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website. 

There is nothing in the 2003 Act which prevents an application being made for a 

premises licence at premises where a premises licence is already held. 

Application forms 

8.20 The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 require local authorities to ensure that all 

procedures relating to access to, or the exercise of, a service activity may be easily 

completed, at a distance and by electronic means. Electronic application facilities for 

premises licences may be found either on GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own 

website. It remains acceptable to make an application in writing. 

Electronic applications 

8.21 Applicants may apply using the licence application forms available on GOV.UK, or will 

be re-directed from GOV.UK to the licensing authority’s own electronic facility if one is 

available. Applicants may also apply directly to the licensing authority’s facility without 

going through GOV.UK. 

Electronic applications using forms on gov.uk 

8.22 GOV.UK will send a notification to the licensing authority when a completed application 

form is available for it to download from GOV.UK. This is the day that the application is 

taken to be ‘given’ to the licensing authority, even if it is downloaded at a later stage, 

and the application must be advertised from the day after that day (as for a written 

application). The licensing authority must acknowledge the application as quickly as 

possible, specifying the statutory time period and giving details of the appeal procedure. 

8.23 The period of 28 consecutive days during which the application must be advertised on a 

notice outside the premises is, effectively, the statutory timescale by which the 

application must be determined (unless representations are made). This will be 

published on GOV.UK and must also be published on the licensing authority’s own 

electronic facility if one exists. If no representations are made during this period, the 

licensing authority must notify the applicant as quickly as possible that the licence has 

been granted. The licensing authority must send the licence to the applicant as soon as 

possible after this, but the applicant may start the licensed activity as soon as they have 

been notified that the application is granted (subject to compliance with the conditions of 

the licence). The licence may be supplied in electronic or written format as long as the 

applicant is aware which document constitutes ‘the licence’. If representations are 

made, the guidance in Chapter 9 applies. 

Requirement to copy application to responsible authorities 

8.24 The licensing authority must copy electronic applications, made via GOV.UK or its own 

facility, to responsible authorities no later than the first working day after the application 

Page 82

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 53 

is given. However, if an applicant submits any part of their application in writing, the 

applicant will remain responsible for copying it to responsible authorities. 

Applications via the local authority electronic application facility 

8.25 Where applications are made on the licensing authority’s own electronic facility, the 

application will be taken to be ‘given’ when the applicant has submitted a complete 

application form and paid the fee. The application is given at the point at which it 

becomes accessible to the authority by means of the facility. The licensing authority 

must acknowledge the application as quickly as possible, specifying the statutory time 

period and giving details of the appeal procedure. 

‘Holding’ and ‘deferring’ electronic applications 

8.26 The Government recommends (as for written applications) that electronic applications 

should not be returned if they contain obvious and minor errors such as typing mistakes, 

or small errors that can be rectified with information already in the authority’s 

possession. However, if this is not the case and required information is missing or 

incorrect, the licensing authority may ‘hold’ the application until the applicant has 

supplied all the required information. This effectively resets the 28 day period for 

determining an application and may be done any number of times until the application 

form is complete. Licensing authorities must ensure that they notify the applicant as 

quickly as possible of any missing (or incorrect) information, and explain how this will 

affect the statutory timescale and advertising requirements. 

8.27 If an application has been given at the weekend, the notice advertising the application 

(where applicable) may already be displayed outside the premises by the time that the 

licensing authority downloads the application. It is therefore recommended that, if a 

licensing authority holds an application, it should inform the applicant that the original (or 

if necessary, amended) notice must be displayed until the end of the revised period. The 

licensing authority should also advise the applicant that they should not advertise the 

application in a local newspaper until they have received confirmation from the licensing 

authority that the application includes all the required information. To ensure clarity for 

applicants, the Government recommends that licensing authorities include similar 

advice on their electronic application facilities (where these exist) to ensure that 

applicants do not incur any unnecessary costs. 

8.28 If an applicant persistently fails to supply the required information, the licensing authority 

may refuse the application and the applicant must submit a new application. 

8.29 Licensing authorities may also ‘defer’ electronic applications once if the application is 

particularly complicated, for example if representations are received and a hearing is 

required. This allows the licensing authority to extend the statutory time period for the 

determination of the application by such time as is necessary, including, if required, 

arranging and holding a hearing. Licensing authorities must ensure that applicants are 

informed as quickly as possible of a decision to defer, and the reasons for the deferral, 

before the original 28 days has expired. 

Written applications 

8.30 A written application for a premises licence must be made in the prescribed form to the 

relevant licensing authority and be copied to each of the appropriate responsible 

authorities. For example, it would not be appropriate to send an application for premises 

Page 83

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



54 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

which was not a vessel to the Maritime and Coastguard Agency. The application must 

be accompanied by: 

•  the required fee (details of fees may be viewed on the GOV.UK website); 

•  an operating schedule (see below); 

•  a plan of the premises in a prescribed form; and 

•  if the application involves the supply of alcohol, a form of consent from the individual 

who is to be specified in the licence as the designated premises supervisor (DPS). 

8.31 If the application is being made by an individual it should be accompanied by acceptable 

evidence of entitlement to work in the UK (this includes where the application is 

submitted electronically), as set out in the application form (see paragraph 4.8). 

8.32 If the application is being made in respect of a community premises, it may be 

accompanied by the form of application to apply the alternative licence condition. 

8.33 Guidance on completing premises licence, club premises certificate and minor variation 

forms can be found on the GOV.UK website. The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises 

licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005 contain provision about the 

prescribed form of applications, operating schedules and plans and are published on the 

legislation.gov.uk website. 

Plans 

8.34 Plans, for written and electronic applications, will not be required to be submitted in any 

particular scale, but they must be in a format which is “clear and legible in all material 

respects”, i.e. they must be accessible and provides sufficient detail for the licensing 

authority to be able to determine the application, including the relative size of any 

features relevant to the application. There is no requirement for plans to be 

professionally drawn as long as they clearly show all the prescribed information. 

Beer gardens or other outdoor spaces 

8.35 Applicants will want to consider whether they might want to use a garden or other 

outdoor space as a location from which alcohol will be consumed. The sale of alcohol is 

to be treated as taking place where the alcohol is appropriated to the contract. In 

scenarios where drink orders are taken by a member of staff in the garden or outdoor 

space and the member of staff then collects the drinks from the licensed premises and 

returns to deliver them to the customer this would be treated as an off-sale and any 

conditions that relate to off-sales would apply. 

8.36 In such cases it will be not necessary to include the garden or other outdoor space on 

the plan as part of the area covered by the premises licence. However, it will be 

necessary for the applicant to include the garden or other outdoor space on the plan as 

part of the area covered by the premises licence if the intention is to provide a service 

whereby drinks are available for sale and consumption directly from that area (i.e. the 

provision of on-sales). This would apply in the case of an outdoor bar or a service 

whereby a member of staff who is in the garden or outdoor space carries with them 

drinks that are available for sale (without the need for the staff member to return to the 

licensed premises to collect them). 

8.37 If the beer garden or other outdoor area is to be used for the consumption of off-sales 

only, there is no requirement to show it on the plan of the premises, but the prescribed 

Page 84

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 55 

application form requires the applicant to provide a description of where the place is and 

its proximity to the premises. 

Entitlement to work in the UK 

8.38 Individuals applying for a premises licence for the sale of alcohol or late night 

refreshment must be entitled to work in the UK. From 6 April 2017 licensing authorities 

must be satisfied that an individual who applies for a premises licence is entitled to work 

in the UK. This includes applications made by more than one individual applicant. An 

application made by an individual without the entitlement to work in the UK must be 

rejected. This applies to applications which include the sale of alcohol and the 

provisions of late night refreshment, but does not include applications which apply to 

regulated entertainment only. For example, a person applying for a licence for a music 

venue who does not intend to sell alcohol or late night refreshment is not prohibited from 

applying for a licence on grounds of immigration status. However, they will commit a 

criminal offence if they work illegally.   

8.39 The documents which may be relied on in support of an application demonstrating an 

entitlement to work in the UK are the same as for personal licence applicants see 

paragraph 4.8. Where there is sufficient evidence that the applicant is not resident in the 

UK there is no requirement that the applicant has an entitlement to work in the UK. 

8.40 Where an applicant’s permission to work in the UK is time-limited the licensing authority 

may issue a premises licence for an indefinite period, but the licence will become invalid 

when the immigration permission expires. The individual’s entitlement to work in the UK 

may be extended or made permanent by the Home Office, and granting the licence for 

an indefinite period prevents the licensee from having to re-apply for a new licence.  In 

the event that the Home Office cuts short or ends a person’s immigration permission 

(referred to a curtailment or revocation), any licence issued on or after 6 April 2017 

which authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night refreshment will 

automatically lapse. As with personal licences, the licensing authority is under no duty to 

carry out on going immigration checks to see whether a licence holder’s permission to 

be in the UK has been brought to an end. For further details on entitlement to work see 

paragraphs 4.8 to 4.18.    

Steps to promote the licensing objectives 

8.41 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to the 

statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the expectations 

of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps that are 

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge 

of their local area when describing the steps they propose to take to promote the 

licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible authorities are expected to 

publish information about what is meant by the promotion of the licensing objectives and 

to ensure that applicants can readily access advice about these matters. However, 

applicants are also expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area in which 

the premises are situated to inform the content of the application. 

8.42 Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to 

demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing 

objectives, that they understand: 

Page 85

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



56 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder 

hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children may 

congregate; 

•  any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and 

•  any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary 

schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other 

schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks. 

8.43 Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they 

will manage any potential risks. Where specific policies apply in the area (for example, a 

cumulative impact policy), applicants are also expected to demonstrate an 

understanding of how the policy impacts on their application; any measures they will 

take to mitigate the impact; and why they consider the application should be an 

exception to the policy. 

8.44 It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when determining 

the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. For example, 

premises with close proximity to residential premises should consider what effect this 

will have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to ensure the 

promotion of the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which 

may be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where there are no 

known concerns, acknowledge this in their application. 

8.45 The majority of information which applicants will require should be available in the 

licensing policy statement in the area. Other publicly available sources which may be of 

use to applicants include: 

•  the Crime Mapping website; 

•  Neighbourhood Statistics websites; 

•  websites or publications by local responsible authorities; 

•  websites or publications by local voluntary schemes and initiatives; and 

•  on-line mapping tools. 

8.46 While applicants are not required to seek the views of responsible authorities before 

formally submitting their application, they may find them to be a useful source of expert 

advice on local issues that should be taken into consideration when making an 

application. Licensing authorities may wish to encourage co-operation between 

applicants, responsible authorities and, where relevant, local residents and businesses 

before applications are submitted in order to minimise the scope for disputes to arise. 

8.47 Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with sufficient information in this 

section to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are appropriate to 

promote the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must not be based on 

providing a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing objectives and applicants 

are expected to make it clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the 

premises. 

8.48 All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that the licensing 

objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no disputes, the steps that 

applicants propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, as set out in the 

operating schedule, will very often translate directly into conditions that will be attached 

Page 86

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 57 

to premises licences with the minimum of fuss. 

8.49 For some premises, it is possible that no measures will be appropriate to promote one 

or more of the licensing objectives, for example, because they are adequately covered 

by other existing legislation. It is however important that all operating schedules should 

be precise and clear about the measures that are proposed to promote each of the 

licensing objectives. 

Variations 

Introduction 

8.50 Where a premises licence holder wishes to amend the licence, the 2003 Act in most 

cases permits an application to vary to be made rather than requiring an application for 

a new premises licence. The process to be followed will depend on the nature of the 

variation and its potential impact on the licensing objectives. Applications to vary can be 

made electronically via GOV.UK or by means of the licensing authority’s own electronic 

facility following the procedures set out in Chapter 8 above. 

Simplified processes 

8.51 There are simplified processes for making applications, or notifying changes, in the 

following cases: 

•  a change of the name or address of someone named in the licence (section 33); 

•  an application to vary the licence to specify a new individual as the designated 

premises supervisor (DPS) (section 37); 

•  a request to be removed as the designated premises supervisor (section 41); 

•  an application by a licence holder in relation to community premises authorised to sell 

alcohol to remove the usual mandatory conditions set out in sections 19(2) and 19(3) 

of the 2003 Act concerning the supervision of alcohol sales by a personal licence 

holder and the need for a DPS who holds a personal licence (sections 25A and 41D); 

and 

•  an application for minor variation of a premises licence (sections 41A to 41C) or club 

premises certificate (sections 86A to 86C). 

8.52 If an application to specify a new DPS or to remove the mandatory conditions 

concerning the supervision of alcohol sales is made electronically via GOV.UK or the 

licensing authority’s own electronic facility, the authority must notify the police no later 

than the first working day after the application is given. 

8.53 Where a simplified process requires the applicant (if they are not also the personal 

licence holder) to copy the application to the licence holder for information, this will 

apply regardless of whether the application is made in writing or electronically. 

Otherwise the general guidance set out above (paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28) on electronic 

applications applies. 

Minor variations process 

8.54 Variations to premises licences or club premises certificates that could not impact 

adversely on the licensing objectives are subject to a simplified ‘minor variations’ 

process. Under this process, the applicant is not required to advertise the variation in a 

newspaper or circular, or copy it to responsible authorities. However, they must display 

Page 87

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



58 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

it on a white notice (to distinguish it from the blue notice used for full variations and new 

applications). The notice must comply with the requirements set out in regulation 26A of 

the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 

2005. In accordance with those regulations, the notice must be displayed for a period of 

ten working days starting on the working day after the minor variation application was 

given to the licensing authority. 

8.55 On receipt of an application for a minor variation, the licensing authority must consider 

whether the variation could impact adversely on the licensing objectives. It is recommended 

that decisions on minor variations should be delegated to licensing officers. 

8.56 In considering the application, the licensing authority must consult relevant responsible 

authorities (whether the application is made in writing or electronically) if there is any 

doubt about the impact of the variation on the licensing objectives and they need 

specialist advice, and take their views into account in reaching a decision. The 

application is unlikely to be relevant to all responsible authorities.  

8.57 The licensing authority must also consider any relevant representations received from 

other persons within the time limit referred to below. As stated earlier in this Guidance, 

representations are only relevant if they clearly relate to the likely effect of the grant of 

the variation on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives; representations 

must be confined to the subject matter of the variation. In the case of minor variations, 

there is no right to a hearing (as for a full variation or new application), but licensing 

authorities must take any representations into account in arriving at a decision. 

8.58 Other persons have ten working days from the ‘initial day’, that is to say, the day after 

the application is received by the licensing authority, to submit representations. The 

licensing authority must therefore wait until this period has elapsed before determining 

the application, but must do so at the latest within 15 working days, beginning on the 

first working day after the authority received the application, with effect either that the 

minor variation is granted or the application is refused. 

8.59 If the licensing authority fails to respond to the applicant within 15 working days (see 

section 193 of the 2003 Act for the definition of working day), the application will be 

treated as refused and the authority must return the fee to the applicant forthwith. 

However, the licensing authority and the applicant may agree instead that the 

undetermined application should be treated as a new application and that the fee 

originally submitted will be treated as a fee for the new application. 

8.60 Where an application is refused and is then re-submitted through the full variation 

process, the full 28 day notification period will apply from the date the new application is 

received and applicants should advertise the application and copy it to all responsible 

authorities (in accordance with the regulations applicable to full variations). 

8.61 Minor variations will generally fall into four categories: minor changes to the structure or 

layout of premises; small adjustments to licensing hours; the removal of out of date, 

irrelevant or unenforceable conditions or addition of volunteered conditions; and the 

addition of certain licensable activities. In all cases the overall test is whether the 

proposed variation could impact adversely on any of the four licensing objectives. 

Changes to structure/layout 

8.62 Many small variations to layout will have no adverse impact on the licensing objectives. 

Page 88

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 59 

However, changes to layout should be referred to the full variation process if they could 

potentially have an adverse impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives, for 

example by: 

•  increasing the capacity for drinking on the premises; 

•  affecting access between the public part of the premises and the rest of the premises 

or the street or public way, for instance, block emergency exits or routes to 

emergency exits; or 

•  impeding the effective operation of a noise reduction measure such as an acoustic 

lobby. 

8.63 Licensing authorities will also need to consider the combined effect of a series of 

applications for successive small layout changes (for example, as part of a rolling 

refurbishment of premises) which in themselves may not be significant, but which 

cumulatively may impact adversely on the licensing objectives. This emphasises the 

importance of having an up-to-date copy of the premises plan available. 

8.64 An application to remove a licensable activity should normally be approved as a minor 

variation. Variations to add the sale by retail or supply of alcohol to a licence are 

excluded from the minor variations process and must be treated as full variations in all 

cases. 

8.65 For other licensable activities, licensing authorities will need to consider each 

application on a case by case basis and in light of any licence conditions put forward by 

the applicant. 

Licensing hours 

8.66 Variations to the following are excluded from the minor variations process and must be 

treated as full variations in all cases: 

•  to extend licensing hours for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on or off 

the premises between the hours of 23.00 and 07.00; or 

•  to increase the amount of time on any day during which alcohol may be sold or 

supplied for consumption on or off the premises. 

8.67 Applications to reduce licensing hours for the sale or supply of alcohol or, in some 

cases, to move (without increasing) the licensed hours between 07.00 and 23.00 will 

normally be processed as minor variations. 

8.68 Applications to vary the time during which other licensable activities take place should 

be considered on a case-by-case basis with reference to the likely impact on the 

licensing objectives. 

Licensing conditions  

a) Imposed conditions 

8.69 Licensing authorities cannot impose their own conditions on the licence through the 

minor variations process. If the licensing officer considers that the proposed variation 

would impact adversely on the licensing objectives unless conditions are imposed, they 

should refuse it. 

Page 89

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



60 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

b) Volunteered conditions 

8.70 Applicants may volunteer conditions as part of the minor variation process. These 

conditions may arise from their own risk assessment of the variation, or from informal 

discussions with responsible authorities or the licensing authority. 

8.71 For instance, there may be circumstances when the licence holder and a responsible 

authority such as the police or environmental health authority, agree that a new condition 

should be added to the licence (for example, that a nightclub adds the provision of late 

night refreshment to its licence to ensure a longer period of dispersal). Such a change 

would not normally impact adversely on the licensing objectives and could be expected to 

promote them by preventing crime and disorder or public nuisance. In these 

circumstances, the minor variation process may provide a less costly and onerous means 

of amending the licence than a review, with no risk to the licensing objectives. However, 

this route should only be used where the agreed variations are minor and the licence 

holder and the responsible authority have come to a genuine agreement. The licensing 

authority should be alive to any attempts to pressure licence or certificate holders into 

agreeing to new conditions where there is no evidence of a problem at the premises and, 

if there is any doubt, should discuss this with the relevant parties. 

c) Amending or removing existing conditions 

8.72 However, there may be some circumstances when the minor variation process is 

appropriate. Premises may change over time and the circumstances that originally led 

to the condition being attached or volunteered may no longer apply. For example, there 

may be no need for door supervision if a bar has been converted into a restaurant. 

Equally some embedded conditions may no longer apply.  

8.73 Changes in legislation may invalidate certain conditions. Although the conditions do not 

have to be removed from the licence, licence holders and licensing authorities may 

agree that this is desirable to clarify the licence holder’s legal obligations. There may 

also be cases where it is appropriate to revise the wording of a condition that is unclear 

or unenforceable. This would be acceptable as a minor variation as long as the purpose 

of the condition and its intended effect remain unchanged. Such a change could be 

expected to promote the licensing objectives by making it easier for the licence holder to 

understand and comply with the condition and easier for the licensing authority to 

enforce it. 

Full variations process 

8.74 Any other changes to the licence or certificate require an application to vary under 

sections 34 or 84 of the 2003 Act. 

8.75 Licensing authorities may wish to consider whether there is any likely impact on the 

promotion of the licensing objectives in deciding whether there is a need for an 

application to vary in relation to features which are not required to be shown on the plan 

under section 17 of the 2003 Act, but have nevertheless been included, for example, 

moveable furniture (altering the position of tables and chairs) or beer gardens 

(installation of a smoking shelter that will not affect the use of exits or escape routes). 

8.76 However, it should be noted that a section 34 application cannot be used to vary a 

licence so as to: 

Page 90

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 61 

•  extend a time limited licence; 

•  transfer the licence from one holder to another; or 

•  transfer the licence from one premises to another. 

8.77 If an applicant wishes to make these types of changes to the premises licence, the 

applicant should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the 2003 

Act; or, to transfer the licence to another holder, an application under section 42 of the 

2003 Act. 

Relaxation of opening hours for local, national and international 
occasions 

8.78 It should normally be possible for applicants for premises licences and club premises 

certificates to anticipate special occasions which occur regularly each year – such as 

bank holidays and St. George’s or St. Patrick’s Day – and to include appropriate 

opening hours in their operating schedules. Similarly, temporary event notices should be 

sufficient to cover other events which take place at premises that do not have a 

premises licence or club certificate. 

8.79 However, exceptional events of local, national or international significance may arise 

which could not have been anticipated when the application was first made. In these 

circumstances, the Secretary of State may make a licensing hours order to allow 

premises to open for specified, generally extended, hours on these special occasions. 

This avoids the need for large numbers of applications to vary premises licences and 

club premises certificates. Typical events might include a one-off local festival or a 

Royal Jubilee. 

Advertising applications 

8.80  The requirements governing the advertisement of applications for the grant, variation or 

review of premises licences and club premises certificates are contained in Regulations 

25 and 26 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) 

Regulations 2005 which are published on the Government’s legislation website. 

8.80 Applicants are required to: 

•  publish a notice in a local newspaper or, if there is none, in a local newsletter, circular 

or similar document circulating in the area in which the premises are situated; and 

•  display a brief summary of the application on an A4 (or larger) size notice, on pale 

blue paper in a prominent position immediately on or outside the premises for at least 

28 consecutive days (starting on the day after the day on which the application was 

given to the relevant licensing authority). The notice must be printed legibly in black 

ink or typed in black in size 16 font or larger. 

•  ensure that the above notices contain the name of the applicant, postal addresses of 

the premises (or if there is no postal address a description of the premises sufficient 

to enable the location to be identified), relevant licensing authority and the date by 

which any representations in relation to the application need to be made to the 

licensing authority. They should also contain a statement of the relevant licensable 

activities or relevant qualifying club activities that it is proposed will be carried on at 

the premises, or in the case of an application to vary a premises licence or a club 

premises certificate the notices shall briefly describe the proposed variation. 

Page 91

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



62 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

8.81 It is the responsibility of the applicant for putting the notice up, however licensing 

authorities should consider where the signs should be placed and advise the applicant 

where appropriate, to ensure people will see them, in particular if an application is likely 

to be of interest to the public. As prescribed in regulations, licensing authorities must 

also place a notice on their website outlining key details of the application as set out in 

regulations, including: 

•  the name of the applicant or club; 

•  the postal address of the premises or club premises; 

•  the postal address and, where applicable, the internet address where the relevant 

licensing authority’s register is kept and where and when the record of the application 

may be inspected; 

•  the date by which representations from responsible authorities or other persons 

should be received and how these representations should be made; and 

•  that it is an offence knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement in connection 

with an application and the maximum fine for which a person is liable on summary 

conviction for the offence. 

8.82 The summary of the application should set out matters such as the proposed licensable 

activities and the proposed hours of opening and should be clearly displayed for the 

period during which representations may be made, together with information about 

where the details of the application may be viewed. 

8.83 Licensing authorities in Wales should consider encouraging applicants to provide details 

in the alternative language (Welsh or English) to that of the main advertisement itself 

where the application may be viewed. Therefore, if an applicant publishes a notice in 

English they should be encouraged to provide a statement in Welsh as to where the 

application may be viewed, and vice versa. This would allow the reader of the notice to 

make enquiries to the licensing authority and find out the nature of the application. 

8.84 Licensing authorities in Wales are also required to publish key information from licence 

applications in Welsh on their websites. 

8.85 In the case of applications for premises licences involving internet or mail order sales, 

notices should be conspicuously displayed at the place where the alcohol is 

appropriated to the contract. 

8.86 A vessel which is not permanently moored or berthed is treated as if it were a premises 

situated in a place where it is usually moored or berthed. The newspaper advertisement 

notice for such a vessel would need to be in relation to this place (where it is usually 

moored or berthed) and there is no provision requiring such advertising in other areas, 

for instance, if the vessel journeys through other licensing authority areas. 

8.87 Arrangements should be put in place by the licensing authority for other parties to view 

a record of the application in the licensing register as described in Schedule 3 to the 

2003 Act. Charges made for copies of the register should not exceed the cost of 

preparing such copies. Licensing authorities may wish to conduct random and 

unannounced visits to premises to confirm that notices have been clearly displayed and 

include relevant and accurate information. 

Page 92

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 63 

Applications to change the designated premises supervisors 

8.88 Chapter 4 covers designated premises supervisors and applications to vary a premises 

licence covering sales of alcohol by specifying a new designated premises supervisor. 

Chapter 4 covers applications by community premises to disapply the usual mandatory 

conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3) of the 2003 Act concerning the authorisation of 

alcohol sales by a personal licence holder and the need for a designated premises 

supervisor who holds a personal licence. 

Provisional statements 

8.89 Where premises are being or are about to be constructed, extended or otherwise 

altered for the purpose of being used for one or more licensable activities, investors may 

be unwilling to commit funds unless they have some assurance that a premises licence 

covering the desired licensable activities would be granted for the premises when the 

building work is completed. 

8.90 The 2003 Act does not define the words “otherwise altered”, but the alteration must 

relate to the purpose of being used for one or more licensable activities. 

8.91 Any person falling within section 16 of the 2003 Act can apply for a premises licence 

before new premises are constructed, extended or changed. This would be possible 

where clear plans of the proposed structure exist and the applicant is in a position to 

complete an operating schedule including details of: 

•  the activities to take place there; 

•  the time at which such activities will take place; 

•  the proposed hours of opening; 

•  where the applicant wishes the licence to have effect for a limited period, that period; 

•  the steps to be taken to promote the licensing objectives; and 

•  where the sale of alcohol is involved, whether supplies are proposed to be for 

consumption on or off the premises (or both) and the name of the designated 

premises supervisor the applicant wishes to specify. 

8.92 In such cases, the licensing authority would include in the licence the date upon which it 

would come into effect. A provisional statement will normally only be required when the 

information described above is not available. 

8.93 The 2003 Act therefore provides for a person, if an individual aged 18 or over, who has 

an interest in the premises to apply for a “provisional statement”. This will not be time 

limited, but the longer the delay before an application for a premises licence is made, 

the more likely it is that there will be material changes and that the licensing authority 

will accept representations. “Person” in this context includes a business. 

8.94 When a hearing is held, the licensing authority must decide whether, if the premises 

were constructed or altered in the way proposed in the schedule of works and if a 

premises licence was sought for those premises, it would consider it appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives to: 

•  attach conditions to the licence; 

•  rule out any of the licensable activities applied for; 

•  refuse to specify the person nominated as premises supervisor; or 

Page 93

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



64 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  reject the application. 

It will then issue the applicant with a provisional statement setting out the details of that 

decision together with its reasons. 

8.95 The licensing authority must copy the provisional statement to each person who made 

relevant representations, and the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises 

is situated. The licensing authority should give full and comprehensive reasons for its 

decision. This is important in anticipation of an appeal by any aggrieved party. 

8.96 When a person applies for a premises licence in respect of premises (or part of the 

premises or premises which are substantially the same) for which a provisional 

statement has been made, representations by responsible authorities and other persons 

will be excluded in certain circumstances. These are where: 

•  the application for a licence is in the same form as the licence described in the 

provisional statement; 

•  the work in the schedule of works has been satisfactorily completed; 

•  given the information provided in the application for a provisional statement, the 

responsible authority or other person could have made the same, or substantially the 

same, representations about the application then but failed to do so without 

reasonable excuse; and 

•  there has been no material change in the circumstances relating either to the 

premises or to the area in the proximity of those premises since the provisional 

statement was made. 

8.97 Any decision of the licensing authority on an application for a provisional statement will 

not relieve an applicant of the need to apply for planning permission, building control 

approval of the building work, or in some cases both planning permission and building 

control. 

8.98 A provisional statement may not be sought or given for a vessel, a vehicle or a 

moveable structure (see section 189 of the 2003 Act). 

Transfers of premises licences 

8.99 The 2003 Act provides for any person who may apply for a premises licence, which 

includes a business, to apply for a premises licence to be transferred to them. Where 

the application is made in writing, the applicant must give notice of the application to the 

chief officer of police in all cases, and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) if the 

licence authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night refreshment. Where it is 

made electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s electronic facility, the 

licensing authority must notify the police and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement) no later than the first working day after the application is given. However, 

the responsibility to notify the DPS remains with the applicant. Otherwise the general 

guidance on electronic applications set out in paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28 applies. 

8.100 In the vast majority of cases, it is expected that a transfer will be a very simple 

administrative process. Section 43 of the 2003 Act provides a mechanism which allows 

the transfer to come into immediate interim effect as soon as the licensing authority 

receives it, until it is formally determined or withdrawn. This is to ensure that there should 

be no interruption to normal business at the premises. If the police or the Home Office 

Page 94

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 65 

(Immigration Enforcement) raise no objection about the application, the licensing authority 

must transfer the licence in accordance with the application, amend the licence 

accordingly and return it to the new holder. 

8.101 In exceptional circumstances where the chief officer of police believes the transfer may 

undermine the crime prevention objective, the police may object to the transfer. The 

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) may object if it considers that granting the 

transfer would be prejudicial to the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. 

Such objections are expected to be rare and arise because the police or the Home 

Office (Immigration Enforcement) have evidence that the business or individuals 

seeking to hold the licence, or businesses or individuals linked to such persons, are 

involved in crime (or disorder) or employing illegal workers. 

8.102 Such objections (and therefore such hearings) should only arise in truly exceptional 

circumstances. If the licensing authority believes that the police or the Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement) are using this mechanism to vet transfer applicants routinely 

and to seek hearings as a fishing expedition to inquire into applicants’ backgrounds, it is 

expected that it would raise the matter immediately with the chief officer of police or the 

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). 

Interim authorities 

8.103 The 2003 Act provides special arrangements for the continuation of permissions under a 

premises licence when the holder of a licence dies suddenly, becomes bankrupt, 

mentally incapable or ceases to be entitled to work in the UK. In the normal course of 

events, the licence would lapse in such circumstances. However, there may also be 

some time before, for example, the deceased person’s estate can be dealt with or an 

administrative receiver appointed. This could have a damaging effect on those with 

interests in the premises, such as an owner, lessor or employees working at the 

premises in question; and could bring unnecessary disruption to customers’ plans. The 

2003 Act therefore provides for the licence to be capable of being reinstated in a 

discrete period of time in certain circumstances. 

8.104 These circumstances arise only where a premises licence has lapsed owing to the 

death, incapacity or insolvency of the holder or where the holder ceases to be entitled to 

work in the UK. In such circumstances, an “interim authority” notice may be given to the 

licensing authority within 28 consecutive days beginning the day after the licence 

lapsed. Where applications are made in writing, the applicant must give notice of the 

application to the chief officer of police in all cases, and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement) if the licence authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night 

refreshment. If an application is made electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing 

authority’s electronic facility, the licensing authority must notify the police and the Home 

Office (Immigration Enforcement) no later than the first working day after the notice is 

given. 

8.105 An interim notice may only be given either by a person with a prescribed interest in the 

premises as set out in the regulations made under the 2003 Act (which may be viewed 

on www.legislation.gov.uk, the Government’s legislation website); or by a person 

connected to the former holder of the licence (normally a personal representative of the 

former holder; or a person with power of attorney; or where someone has become 

Page 95

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



66 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

insolvent, that person’s insolvency practitioner). The person giving the interim authority 

notice must be entitled to work in the UK. 

8.106 The effect of giving the notice is to reinstate the premises licence as if the person giving 

the notice is the holder of the licence and thereby allow licensable activities to continue 

to take place pending a formal application for transfer. The maximum period for which 

an interim authority notice may have effect is three months. 

8.107 The interim authority notice ceases to have effect unless, by the end of the initial period 

of 28 consecutive days, a copy of the notice has been given to the chief officer of police 

and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). Within two working days of receiving 

the copy, and if satisfied that in the exceptional circumstances of the case failure to 

cancel the interim authority would undermine the crime prevention objective, the police 

may give a notice to that effect to the licensing authority. Similarly, the Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement) may give a notice to the licensing authority if satisfied that 

the exceptional circumstances of the case are such that failure to cancel the interim 

authority would undermine the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises.  In 

such circumstances, the licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the 

objection notice and cancel the interim authority notice if it decides that it is appropriate 

to do so for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. 

8.108 Licensing authorities should be alert to the need to consider the objection quickly. Under 

section 50 of the 2003 Act, where the premises licence lapses (because of death, 

incapacity or insolvency of the holder or because the holder is no longer entitled to work 

in the UK) or by its surrender, but no interim authority notice has effect, a person who 

may apply for the grant of a premises licence under section 16(1) may apply within 28 

consecutive days of the lapse for the transfer of the licence to them with immediate effect 

pending the determination of the application. This will result in the licence being reinstated 

from the point at which the transfer application was received by the licensing authority. 

Where the application is made in writing, the person applying for the transfer must copy 

their application to the chief officer of police and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement). If the application is made electronically the licensing authority must copy 

the application to the police and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). 

Right of freeholders etc to be notified of licensing matters 

8.109 A person (which will include a business or company) with a property interest in any 

premises situated in the licensing authority’s area may give notice of their interest to the 

authority using a prescribed form and on payment of the relevant fee. The application 

may be made in writing or electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own 

facility, in which case the guidance at paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28 applies. Details of fees 

and forms are available on the GOV.UK website. It is entirely at the discretion of such 

persons whether they choose to register or not. It is not a legal requirement. Those who 

may take advantage of this arrangement include the freeholder or leaseholder, a legal 

mortgagee in respect of the premises, a person in occupation of the premises or any 

other person prescribed by the Secretary of State. 

8.110 The notice will have effect for 12 months but a new notice can be given every year. 

While the notice has effect, if any change relating to the premises concerned has been 

made to the licensing register (which the licensing authority has a duty to keep under 

Page 96

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 67 

section 8 of the 2003 Act), the licensing authority must notify the person who registered 

an interest of the matter to which the change relates. The person will also be notified of 

their right under section 8 to request a copy of the information contained in any entry in 

the register. In cases relating to interim authority notices (see above), it is important that 

such communications are dealt with promptly. 

 

Page 97

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 7



This page is intentionally left blank



68 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9. Determining applications 

General 

9.1 When a licensing authority receives an application for a new premises licence or an 

application to vary an existing premises licence, it must determine whether the 

application has been made in accordance with section 17 of the 2003 Act, and in 

accordance with regulations made under sections 17(3) to (6), 34, 42, 54 and 55 of the 

2003 Act. It must similarly determine applications for the grant of club premises 

certificates made in accordance with section 71 of the 2003 Act, and in accordance with 

regulations made under sections 71(4) to (7), 84, 91 and 92 of the 2003 Act. This 

means that the licensing authority must consider among other things whether the 

application has been properly advertised in accordance with those regulations. 

Where no representations are made 

9.2 A hearing is not required where an application has been properly made and no 

responsible authority or other person has made a relevant representation or where 

representations are made and subsequently withdrawn. In these cases, the licensing 

authority must grant the application in the terms sought, subject only to conditions which 

are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions under the 

2003 Act. This should be undertaken as a simple administrative process by the licensing 

authority’s officials who should replicate the proposals contained in the operating 

schedule to promote the licensing objectives in the form of clear and enforceable licence 

conditions. Licensing authorities should not hold hearings for uncontested applications, 

for example in situations where representations have been made and conditions have 

subsequently been agreed. 

Where representations are made 

9.3 Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible 

authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant (see paragraphs 9.4 to 

9.10 below), the licensing authority’s discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged 

if another person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, which are 

also not frivolous or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below). Relevant 

representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can 

be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so. 

Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations 

9.4 A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on 

the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation 

from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from 

new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a 

businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from 

entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that 

nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should 

relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the objectives. 

For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to 

Page 99

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 69 

the subject matter of the variation. There is no requirement for a responsible authority or 

other person to produce a recorded history of problems at premises to support their 

representations, and in fact this would not be possible for new premises. 

9.5 It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other than a 

representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of what 

might ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous. A representation may be 

considered to be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation or 

annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person, without reasonable cause or 

justification. Vexatious circumstances may arise because of disputes between rival 

businesses and local knowledge will therefore be invaluable in considering such 

matters. Licensing authorities can consider the main effect of the representation, and 

whether any inconvenience or expense caused by it could reasonably be considered to 

be proportionate. 

9.6 Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of seriousness. 

Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most, are minor and in 

relation to which no remedial steps would be warranted or proportionate. 

9.7 Any person who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representations on either of these 

grounds may lodge a complaint through the local authority’s corporate complaints 

procedure. A person may also challenge the authority’s decision by way of judicial 

review. 

9.8 Licensing authorities should not take decisions about whether representations are 

frivolous, vexatious or relevant to the licensing objectives on the basis of any political 

judgement. This may be difficult for councillors who receive complaints from residents 

within their own wards. If consideration is not to be delegated, contrary to the 

recommendation in this Guidance, an assessment should be prepared by officials for 

consideration by the sub- committee before any decision is taken that necessitates a 

hearing. Any councillor who considers that their own interests are such that they are 

unable to consider the matter independently should disqualify themselves. 

9.9 It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any aspect of 

a representation should be given to the person making that representation. The 

subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body making 

the representation to amplify and clarify it. 

9.10 Licensing authorities should consider providing advice on their websites about how any 

person can make representations to them. 

The role of responsible authorities 

9.11 Responsible authorities under the 2003 Act are automatically notified of all new 

applications. While all responsible authorities may make representations regarding 

applications for licences and club premises certificates and full variation applications, it 

is the responsibility of each responsible authority to determine when they have 

appropriate grounds to do so. 

  

Page 100

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 8



70 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9.12 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some cases 

it is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main 

source of advice in relation to a particular licensing objective. For example, the police 

have a key role in managing the night-time economy and should have good working 

relationships with those operating in their local area5. The police should usually 

therefore be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters relating to the 

promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any responsible 

authority under the 2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the 

licensing objectives if they have evidence to support such representations. Licensing 

authorities must therefore consider all relevant representations from responsible 

authorities carefully, even where the reason for a particular responsible authority’s 

interest or expertise in the promotion of a particular objective may not be immediately 

apparent. However, it remains incumbent on all responsible authorities to ensure that 

their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a 

hearing. 

Licensing authorities acting as responsible authorities 

9.13 Licensing authorities are included in the list of responsible authorities. A similar 

framework exists in the Gambling Act 2005. The 2003 Act does not require responsible 

authorities to make representations about applications for the grant of premises licences 

or to take any other steps in respect of different licensing processes. It is, therefore, for 

the licensing authority to determine when it considers it appropriate to act in its capacity 

as a responsible authority; the licensing authority should make this decision in 

accordance with its duties under section 4 of the 2003 Act. 

9.14 Licensing authorities are not expected to act as responsible authorities on behalf of 

other parties (for example, local residents, local councillors or community groups) 

although there are occasions where the authority may decide to do so. Such parties can 

make relevant representations to the licensing authority in their own right, and it is 

reasonable for the licensing authority to expect them to make representations 

themselves where they are reasonably able to do so. However, if these parties have 

failed to take action and the licensing authority is aware of relevant grounds to make a 

representation, it may choose to act in its capacity as responsible authority. 

9.15 It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to expect that other responsible authorities 

should intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of that other 

responsible authority. For example, the police should make representations where the 

representations are based on concerns about crime and disorder. Likewise, it is 

reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions to 

make representations where there are concerns about noise nuisance. Each 

responsible authority has equal standing under the 2003 Act and may act independently 

without waiting for representations from any other responsible authority. 

9.16 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities to act as responsible authorities as a means 

of early intervention; they may do so where they consider it appropriate without having 

to wait for representations from other responsible authorities. For example, the licensing 

                                                
5
 Police and Crime Commissioners are expected to have a central role working in partnership with local authorities, enforcement 

bodies and other local partners to decide on what action is needed to tackle alcohol- related crime and disorder in their areas. 
However, the Chief Officer of Police remains the named responsible authority under the 2003 Act. 

Page 101

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 71 

authority may (in a case where it has applied a cumulative impact policy) consider that 

granting a new licence application will add to the cumulative impact of licensed 

premises in its area and therefore decide to make representations to that effect, without 

waiting for any other person to do so. 

9.17 In cases where a licensing authority is also acting as responsible authority in relation to 

the same process, it is important to achieve a separation of responsibilities within the 

authority to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. In such cases 

licensing determinations will be made by the licensing committee or sub committee 

comprising elected members of the authority (although they are advised by a licensing 

officer). Therefore, a separation is achieved by allocating distinct functions (i.e. those of 

licensing authority and responsible authority) to different officials within the authority. 

9.18 In these cases, licensing authorities should allocate the different responsibilities to 

different licensing officers or other officers within the local authority to ensure a proper 

separation of responsibilities. The officer advising the licensing committee (i.e. the 

authority acting in its capacity as the licensing authority) must be a different person from 

the officer who is acting for the responsible authority. The officer acting for the 

responsible authority should not be involved in the licensing decision process and 

should not discuss the merits of the case with those involved in making the 

determination by the licensing authority. For example, discussion should not take place 

between the officer acting as responsible authority and the officer handling the licence 

application regarding the merits of the case. Communication between these officers in 

relation to the case should remain professional and consistent with communication with 

other responsible authorities. Representations, subject to limited exceptions, must be 

made in writing. It is for the licensing authority to determine how the separate roles are 

divided to ensure an appropriate separation of responsibilities. This approach may not 

be appropriate for all licensing authorities and many authorities may already have 

processes in place to effectively achieve the same outcome. 

9.19 Smaller licensing authorities, where such a separation of responsibilities is more 

difficult, may wish to involve officials from outside the licensing department to ensure a 

separation of responsibilities. However, these officials should still be officials employed 

by the authority. 

Health bodies acting as responsible authorities 

9.20 Where a local authority’s Director of Public Health in England (DPH)6 or Local Health 

Board (LHB) (in Wales) exercises its functions as a responsible authority, it should have 

sufficient knowledge of the licensing policy and health issues to ensure it is able to fulfil 

those functions. If the authority wishes to make representations, the DPH or LHB will 

need to decide how best to gather and coordinate evidence from other bodies which 

exercise health functions in the area, such as emergency departments and ambulance 

services. 

9.21 Health bodies may hold information which other responsible authorities do not, but 

which would assist a licensing authority in exercising its functions. This information may 

                                                
6
 This change was made as a result of the commencement of measures in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 which amended 

the 2003 Act and further provision in the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public 
Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

Page 102

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 8



72 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

be used by the health body to make representations in its own right or to support 

representations by other responsible authorities, such as the police. Such 

representations can potentially be made on the grounds of all four licensing objectives. 

Perhaps the most obvious example is where drunkenness leads to accidents and 

injuries from violence, resulting in attendances at emergency departments and the use 

of ambulance services. Some of these incidents will be reported to the police, but many 

will not. Such information will often be relevant to the public safety and crime and 

disorder objectives. 

9.22 However, health bodies are encouraged to make representations in respect of any of 

the four licensing objectives without necessarily seeking views from other responsible 

authorities where they have appropriate evidence to do so. There is also potential for 

health bodies to participate in the licensing process in relation to the protection of 

children from harm. This objective not only concerns the physical safety of children, but 

also their moral and psychological well being. 

9.23 Evidence relating to under 18s alcohol-related emergency department attendance, 

hospital admissions and underage sales of alcohol, could potentially have implications 

for both the protection of children from harm and the crime and disorder objectives. 

Health bodies can provide evidence to lead or support representations in relation to this 

objective. In relation to proxy purchases, data collected by health bodies could be used 

to inform other responsible authorities, including the police and licensing authorities, 

about a prevalence of proxy purchasing in a particular area. For example, the police 

could use this data to tackle instances of ‘shoulder tapping’ (where under 18s approach 

adults to buy alcohol on their behalf) and to suggest measures which retailers might be 

able to take to ensure, as far as possible, that they are not knowingly selling alcohol to 

an adult who is buying on behalf of a person aged under 18. Although less obvious, 

health bodies may also have a role to play in the prevention of public nuisance where its 

effect is prejudicial to health and where they hold relevant data. 

9.24 DPHs and LHBs will need to consider how to collect anonymised information about 

incidents that relate to specific premises or premises in a particular area (for example, a 

cumulative impact zone). Many areas have already developed procedures for local 

information sharing to tackle violence, which could provide useful evidence to support 

representations. The College of Emergency Medicine has issued guidelines for 

information sharing to reduce community violence which recommends that data about 

assault victims should be collected upon admission to emergency departments, 

including the date, time and location of the assault – i.e. the name of the pub, club or 

street where the incident occurred. Sometimes, it may be possible to link ambulance 

callouts or attendances at emergency departments to irresponsible practices at specific 

premises, such as serving alcohol to people who are intoxicated or targeting promotions 

involving unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol at particular groups. 

  

Page 103

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 73 

Home Office Immigration Enforcement acting as a responsible 
authority   

9.25 The Immigration Act 2016 made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in 

respect of premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment with effect from 6 

April 2017. In effect this conveys the role of responsible authority to Home Office 

Immigration Enforcement who exercises the powers on the Secretary of State’s behalf. 

When Immigration Enforcement exercises its powers as a responsible authority it will do 

so in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective because it is 

concerned with the prevention of illegal working or immigration offences more broadly.  

Disclosure of personal details of persons making representations 

9.26 Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the licensing authority is required 

under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the applicant with 

copies of the relevant representations that have been made. 

9.27 In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to the licensing authority 

may be reluctant to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal 

details, such as name and address, are divulged to the applicant. 

9.28 Where licensing authorities consider that the person has a genuine and well-founded 

fear of intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation on this basis, 

they may wish to consider alternative approaches. 

9.29 For instance, they could advise the persons to provide the relevant responsible authority 

with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being undermined so 

that the responsible authority can make representations if appropriate and justified. 

9.30 The licensing authority may also decide to withhold some or all of the person’s personal 

details from the applicant, giving only minimal details (such as street name or general 

location within a street). However, withholding such details should only be considered 

where the circumstances justify such action. 

Hearings 

9.31 The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 governing hearings may be found 

on the www.legislation.gov.uk website. If the licensing authority decides that 

representations are relevant, it must hold a hearing to consider them. The need for a 

hearing can only be avoided with the agreement of the licensing authority, where the 

applicant and all of the persons who made relevant representations have given notice to 

the authority that they consider a hearing to be unnecessary. Where this is the case and 

the authority agrees that a hearing is unnecessary, it must forthwith give notice to the 

parties that the hearing has been dispensed with. Notwithstanding those regulatory 

provisions, in cases where the licensing authority believes that a hearing is still 

necessary, it is recommended that the authority should, as soon as possible, provide 

the parties with reasons in writing for the need to hold the hearing. In cases where only 

‘positive’ representations are received, without qualifications, the licensing authority 

should consider whether a hearing is required. To this end, it may wish to notify the 

persons who made representations and give them the opportunity to withdraw those 

representations. This would need to be done in sufficient time before the hearing to 

ensure that parties were not put to unnecessary inconvenience. 

Page 104

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 8



74 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9.32 Responsible authorities should try to conclude any discussions with the applicant in 

good time before the hearing. The 2005 Hearings Regulations permit licensing 

authorities to extend a time limit provided for by those Regulations for a specified period 

where it considers this to be necessary in the public interest. For example, if the 

application is amended at the last moment, the licensing committee should consider 

giving other persons time to address the revised application before the hearing 

commences. Where the authority has extended a time limit it must forthwith give a 

notice to the parties involved stating the period of the extension and the reasons for it. 

9.33 The 2005 Hearings Regulations require that representations must be withdrawn 24 

hours before the first day of any hearing. If they are withdrawn after this time, the 

hearing must proceed and the representations may be withdrawn orally at that hearing. 

However, where discussions between an applicant and those making representations 

are taking place and it is likely that all parties are on the point of reaching agreement, 

the licensing authority may wish to use the power given within the hearings regulations 

to extend time limits, if it considers this to be in the public interest. 

9.34 Applicants should be encouraged to contact responsible authorities and others, such as 

local residents, who may be affected by the application before formulating their 

applications so that the mediation process may begin before the statutory time limits 

come into effect after submission of an application. The hearing process must meet the 

requirements of regulations made under the 2003 Act. Where matters arise which are 

not covered by the regulations, licensing authorities may make arrangements as they 

see fit as long as they are lawful. 

9.35 There is no requirement in the 2003 Act for responsible authorities that have made 

representations to attend, but it is generally good practice and assists committees in 

reaching more informed decisions. Where several responsible authorities within a local 

authority have made representations on an application, a single local authority officer 

may represent them at the hearing if the responsible authorities and the licensing 

authority agree. This local authority officer representing other responsible authorities 

may be a licensing officer, but only if this licensing officer is acting as a responsible 

authority on behalf of the licensing authority and has had no role in the licensing 

determination process. This is to ensure that the responsible authorities are represented 

by an independent officer separate from the licensing determination process. 

9.36 As noted in paragraphs 9.13 to 9.19 above, where the licensing officer is acting as a 

responsible authority the relevant steps should be followed to ensure that this individual 

has no role in the decision making process regarding the licensing determination. 

9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the 

steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives 

that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed 

areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written 

representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the 

applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and 

should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.  

9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the 

overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate 

weight to: 

Page 105

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 75 

•  the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; 

•  the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties; 

•  this Guidance; 

•  its own statement of licensing policy. 

9.39 The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the 

conclusion of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide 

reasons to support it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties. 

Notification of a decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party 

to appeal. After considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the 

application subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule. 

Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 

objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that is 

merely aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to 

the health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any conditions added to 

the licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed when a hearing has 

not been necessary. 

9.40 Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this 

is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify 

a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable 

activities. In the interests of transparency, the licensing authority should publish 

hearings procedures in full on its website to ensure that those involved have the most 

current information. 

9.41 In the context of variations or minor variations, which may involve structural alteration to 

or change of use of a building, the decision of the licensing authority will not exempt an 

applicant from the need to apply for building control approval, planning permission or 

both of these where appropriate. 

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives 

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should 

be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any 

representations or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or 

other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the case 

may be. 

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate 

for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to 

achieve. 

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the 

licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to 

achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide 

that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the 

potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder (such 

as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the 

potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is 

Page 106

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 8



76 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its 

determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing 

outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing 

authority should consider wider issues such as other conditions already in place to 

mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the 

track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate when 

imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing 

authority is expected to come to its determination based on an assessment of the 

evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the determination. 

Considering cases where licensing and planning applications are 
made simultaneously 

9.45 Where businesses have indicated, when applying for a licence under the 2003 Act, that 

they have also applied for planning permission or that they intend to do so, licensing 

committees and officers should consider discussion with their planning counterparts 

prior to determination with the aim of agreeing mutually acceptable operating hours and 

scheme designs. 

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 77 

10. Conditions attached to premises 
licences and club premises certificates 

General 

10.1 This chapter provides further guidance in relation to conditions attached to premises 

licences and club premises certificates. General principles on licence conditions are set 

out in Chapter 1 (see paragraph 1.16). 

10.2 Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or certificate and 

essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the premises licence or the club 

premises certificate will be required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the 

carrying on of licensable activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with 

any condition attached to a licence or certificate is a criminal offence, which on 

conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six months’ imprisonment. The 

courts have made clear that it is particularly important that conditions which are 

imprecise or difficult for a licence holder to observe should be avoided. 

10.3 There are three types of condition that may be attached to a licence or certificate: 

proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these categories is described in more detail 

below. 

Proposed conditions 

10.4 The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives should 

emerge initially from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective licence or 

certificate holder, which they should carry out before making their application for a 

premises licence or club premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps 

recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, which must also set out 

the proposed hours during which licensable activities will be conducted and any other 

hours during which the premises will be open to the public. 

10.5 It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from an 

applicant’s operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in accordance with the 

applicant’s intention. 

Consistency with steps described in operating schedule 

10.6 The 2003 Act provides that where an operating schedule or club operating schedule has 

been submitted with an application and there have been no relevant representations made 

by responsible authorities or any other person, the licence or certificate must be granted 

subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the schedule accompanying the 

application and any mandatory conditions required under the 2003 Act. 

10.7 Consistency means that the effect of the condition should be substantially the same as 

that intended by the terms of the operating schedule. If conditions are broken, this may 

lead to a criminal prosecution or an application for a review and it is extremely important 

therefore that they should be expressed on the licence or certificate in unequivocal and 

unambiguous terms. The duty imposed by conditions on the licence holder or club must 

be clear to the licence holder, club, enforcement officers and the courts. 

Page 109

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9



78 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Imposed conditions 

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been 

exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result of a 

hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to 

impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In order to 

promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions may be included that are 

aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This provision also applies to 

minor variations. 

10.9 It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to promote 

the licensing objectives. 

Proportionality 

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, type, 

location and characteristics and activities taking place at the premises concerned. 

Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions 

which ignore these individual aspects should be avoided. For example, conditions 

should not be used to implement a general policy in a given area such as the use of 

CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where they would not be 

appropriate to the specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the 

prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night 

refreshment might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work 

checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any 

document checked as part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed premises. 

Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the indirect 

costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events 

that are valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes. 

Licensing authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only 

those which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

Naming, packing and promotion in retail premises 

10.11 The Government acknowledges that the irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of 

alcoholic drinks may contribute to alcohol related harms. Where there is direct evidence 

of specific incidents of irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of alcoholic drinks 

linked to the undermining of one of the licensing objectives, licensing authorities should, 

in the exercise of their licensing functions (in particular, in relation to an application for 

the grant, variation or review of a premises licence), consider whether it is appropriate to 

impose conditions on licences that require the licence holder to comply with the 

Portman Group’s Retailer Alert Bulletins. This condition should be considered on a case 

by case basis and in the context of the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

10.12 The Portman Group operates, on behalf of the alcohol industry, a Code of Practice on 

the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks. The Code seeks to ensure 

that drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner and only to 

those who are 18 years old or older. Complaints about products under the Code are 

considered by an Independent Complaints Panel and the Panel’s decisions are 

published on the Portman Group’s website, in the trade press and in an annual report. If 

a product’s packaging or point-of-sale advertising is found to be in breach of the Code, 

Page 110

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 79 

the Portman Group may issue a Retailer Alert Bulletin to notify retailers of the decision 

and ask them not to replenish stocks of any such product or to display such point-of-

sale material, until there has been compliance with the decision. 

Hours of trading 

10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate 

for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the 

licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours during which premises can 

conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy 

statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate 

opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with 

responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each 

application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving 

individual consideration to the merits of each application. 

10.14 Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which licensable 

activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that this would 

undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with 

appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested. 

10.15 Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide sales of alcohol for 

consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is open for shopping 

unless there are good reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those 

hours. 

The performance of plays 

10.16 The 2003 Act provides that other than for the purposes of public safety, conditions must 

not be attached to premises licences or club premises certificates authorising the 

performance of a play7 which attempt to censor or modify the content of plays in any 

way. Any such condition would be ultra vires the 2003 Act. 

Censorship 

10.17 In general, other than in the context of film classification for film exhibitions, licensing 

authorities should not use their powers under the 2003 Act to seek to impose conditions 

which censor the content of any form of regulated entertainment. This is not a proper 

function of licensing law and cannot be properly related to the licensing objectives. The 

content of regulated entertainment is a matter which is addressed by existing laws 

governing indecency and obscenity. Where the concern is about protecting children, 

their access should be restricted where appropriate. But no other limitation should 

normally be imposed. 

Major festivals and carnivals 

10.18 Licensing authorities should publicise the need for the organisers of major festivals and 

carnivals to approach them at the earliest opportunity to discuss arrangements for 

licensing activities falling under the 2003 Act. For some events, the organisers may 

seek a single premises licence to cover a wide range of activities at varied locations 

                                                
7
 See chapter 15 for when a performance of a play is licensable. 

Page 111

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9



80 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

within the premises. This would involve the preparation of a substantial operating 

schedule, and licensing authorities should offer advice and assistance about its 

preparation. 

10.19 For other events, applications for many connected premises licences may be made 

which in combination will represent a single festival. It is important that licensing 

authorities should publicise the need for proper co-ordination of such arrangements and 

will need to ensure that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the 

individual applications. 

10.20 Local authorities should bear in mind their ability to seek premises licences from the 

licensing authority for land or buildings under public ownership within the community in 

their own name.8 This could include, for example, village greens, market squares, 

promenades, community halls, local authority owned art centres and similar public areas 

where festivals and carnivals might take place.9  Performers and entertainers would 

then have no need to obtain a licence or give a temporary event notice themselves to 

enable them to give performances in these places, although they would need the 

permission of the local authority to put on the event. 

Fixed prices 

10.21 Licensing authorities should not attach standardised blanket conditions promoting fixed 

prices for alcoholic drinks to premises licences or club licences or club premises 

certificates in an area. This may be unlawful under current law. However, it is important 

to note that the mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003 

Act prohibit a number of types of drinks promotions including where they give rise to a 

significant risk to any one of the four licensing objectives; the mandatory conditions also 

prohibit the sale of alcohol below the permitted price, as defined in paragraph 10.56. 

10.22 Where licensing authorities are asked by the police, other responsible authorities or 

other persons to impose restrictions on promotions in addition to those restricted by the 

mandatory conditions, they should consider each application on its individual merits, 

tailoring any conditions carefully to cover only irresponsible promotions in the particular 

and individual circumstances of any premises where these are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives. In addition, when considering any relevant 

representations which demonstrate a clear causal link between sales promotions or 

price discounting and levels of crime and disorder on or near the premises, it would be 

appropriate for the licensing authority to consider the imposition of a new condition 

prohibiting irresponsible sales promotions or the discounting of prices of alcoholic 

beverages at those premises. However, before pursuing any form of restrictions at all, 

licensing authorities should take their own legal advice. 

  

                                                
8
 No licence is required for any entertainment provided by or on behalf of a local authority, see paragraphs 15.16-15.19 

9
 The register of public spaces: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licensed-spaces-register 

Page 112

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 81 

Large capacity venues used exclusively or primarily for the 
“vertical” consumption of alcohol (HVVDs) 

10.23 Large capacity “vertical drinking” premises, sometimes called High Volume Vertical 

Drinking establishments (HVVDs), are premises with exceptionally high capacities, 

which are used primarily or exclusively for the sale and consumption of alcohol, and 

have little or no seating for patrons. Previous research has demonstrated that the 

environment within such establishments can have a significant bearing on the likelihood 

of crime and disorder. 

10.24 Where appropriate, conditions can be attached to premises licences for the promotion of 

the prevention of crime and disorder at such premises that require the premises to 

observe: 

•  a prescribed capacity; 

•  an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs to customers based on the capacity; and 

•  a requirement that security staff holding the appropriate SIA licence or exemption are 

present to control entry for the purpose of compliance with the capacity limit and to 

deny entry to individuals who appear drunk or disorderly or both. 

Mandatory conditions in relation to the supply of alcohol 
 

10.25 The 2003 Act provides for the following mandatory conditions to be included in every 

licence and/or club premises certificate in the circumstances specified. 

Designated premises supervisor 

10.26 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, 

it must include a condition that no supply of alcohol may be made at a time when no 

designated premises supervisor has been specified in the licence or at a time when the 

designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal 

licence has been suspended. 

10.27 The main purpose of the ‘designated premises supervisor’ as defined in the 2003 Act is 

to ensure that there is always one specified individual among these personal licence 

holders who can be readily identified for the premises where a premises licence is in 

force. That person will normally have been given day to day responsibility for running 

the premises by the premises licence holder. The requirements set out in relation to the 

designated premises supervisor and authorisation of alcohol sales by a personal licence 

holder do not apply to community premises in respect of which a successful application 

has been made to disapply the usual mandatory conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3) 

of the 2003 Act (see Chapter 4 of this Guidance). 

10.28 The 2003 Act does not require a designated premises supervisor or any other personal 

licence holder to be present on the premises at all times when alcohol is sold. However, 

the designated premises supervisor and the premises licence holder remain responsible 

for the premises at all times including compliance with the terms of the 2003 Act and 

conditions attached to the premises licence to promote the licensing objectives. 

  

Page 113

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9



82 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Authorisation by personal licence holders 

10.29 In addition, every premises licence that authorises the sale of alcohol must require that 

every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. This in most instances will be the designated 

premises supervisor who must hold a valid personal licence. Any premises at which 

alcohol is sold or supplied may employ one or more personal licence holders. This does 

not mean that the condition should require the presence of the designated premises 

supervisor or any other personal licence holder on the premises at all times. 

10.30 Similarly, the fact that every supply of alcohol must be made under the authority of a 

personal licence holder does not mean that only personal licence holders can make 

sales or that they must be personally present at every transaction. A personal licence 

holder may authorise members of staff to make sales of alcohol but may be absent at 

times from the premises when a transaction takes place. However, the responsible 

personal licence holder may not be able to escape responsibility for the actions of 

anyone authorised to make sales. 

10.31 “Authorisation” does not imply direct supervision by a personal licence holder of each 

sale of alcohol. The question arises as to how sales can be authorised. Ultimately, 

whether an authorisation has been given is a question of fact that would have to be 

decided by the courts on the evidence before it in the course of a criminal prosecution. 

10.32 The following factors should be relevant in considering whether or not an authorisation 

has been given: 

•  the person(s) authorised to sell alcohol at any particular premises should be clearly 

identified; 

•  the authorisation should have specified the acts which may be carried out by the 

person who is authorised to supply alcohol; 

•  there should be an overt act of authorisation, for example, a specific written 

statement given to the individual who is authorised to supply alcohol; and 

•  there should be in place sensible arrangements for the personal licence holder to 

monitor the activity that they have authorised on a reasonably regular basis. 

10.33 It is strongly recommended that personal licence holders give specific written 

authorisations to individuals whom they are authorising to retail alcohol. A single written 

authorisation would be sufficient to cover multiple sales over an unlimited period. This 

would assist personal licence holders in demonstrating due diligence should issues 

arise with enforcement authorities; and would protect employees if they themselves are 

challenged in respect of their authority to sell alcohol. 

10.34 Written authorisation is not a requirement of the 2003 Act and its absence alone could 

not give rise to enforcement action. 

10.35 It must be remembered that while the designated premises supervisor or a personal 

licence holder may authorise other individuals to sell alcohol in their absence, they are 

responsible for any sales that may be made. Similarly, the premises licence holder 

remains responsible for ensuring that licensing law and licence conditions are observed 

at the premises. 

Page 114

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 83 

Arrangements for the mandatory licence conditions 

10.36 The mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003 Act (the 

conditions governing irresponsible promotions, dispensing alcohol directly into the 

mouth, provision of free tap water, age verification, small measures and the prohibition 

on sales of alcohol below the permitted price) do not have to be physically included in 

the licence or certificate but nonetheless will apply to every licence and certificate 

authorising the sale and supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The 

mandatory conditions set out in section 19 of the 2003 Act (the requirement for a DPS 

and for all sales to be made or authorised by a personal licence holder) do, however, 

have to be physically included in the licence. The mandatory licence conditions do not 

apply to activities (including the supply of alcohol) authorised by a temporary event 

notice. 

10.37 Whereas the initial mandatory conditions in section 19 of the 2003 Act are set out in 

Annex 1 of the licence, the additional mandatory conditions made under section 19A of 

the 2003 Act are treated as if they were included in existing licences and certificates on 

the date that those conditions came into force. 

10.38 Following their commencement, the mandatory conditions overrode any pre-existing 

conditions already included in a licence or certificate insofar as the mandatory 

conditions were identical to, or inconsistent with or more onerous than, any pre-existing 

conditions. It is not necessary to record on the face of existing licences and certificates 

the impact that the introduction of the mandatory conditions has had on pre-existing 

conditions. 

Irresponsible promotions 

10.39 Under this condition, the “responsible person” (defined in the 2003 Act as the holder of a 

premises licence, designated premises supervisor, a person aged 18 or over who is 

authorised to allow the sale or supply of alcohol by an under 18 or a member or officer 

of a club present on the club premises who can oversee the supply of alcohol) should 

be able to demonstrate that they have ensured that staff do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions. An irresponsible promotion is one that fits 

one of the descriptions below (or is substantially similar), is carried on for the purpose of 

encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The aim of 

the condition is to prohibit or restrict promotions which encourage people to drink more 

than they might ordinarily do and in a manner which undermines the licensing 

objectives. 

Drinking games 

10.40 Drinking games which require or encourage individuals to drink a quantity of alcohol 

within a time limit, or drink as much alcohol as possible within a time limit or otherwise, 

are prohibited. For example, this may include organised ‘drink downing’ competitions. 

This would not prevent the responsible person from requiring all drinks to be consumed 

or abandoned at, or before, the closing time of the premises. Nor does it necessarily 

prohibit ‘happy hours’ as long as these are not designed to encourage individuals to 

drink excessively or rapidly. 

  

Page 115

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9



84 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Large quantities of alcohol for free or a fixed price 

10.41 Irresponsible promotions can include the provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities 

of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted price, where there is a significant risk that 

such a promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This 

includes alcohol provided to the public or to a group defined by a particular 

characteristic, for example, a promotion which offers women free drinks before a certain 

time or “all you can drink for £10”. Promotions can be designed with a particular group in 

mind (for example, over 65s). A common sense approach is encouraged, which may 

include specifying the quantity of alcohol included in it or not targeting a group which 

could become more vulnerable or present a greater risk of crime and disorder as a 

result of excessive alcohol consumption. 

Prizes and rewards 

10.42 The sale, supply or provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other item as a prize 

to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol can be within the 

definition of an irresponsible promotion, where there is a significant risk that such a 

promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This may include 

promotions under which free or discounted alcohol is offered as a part of the sale of 

alcohol, for example, “Buy one and get two free” and “Buy one cocktail and get a 

second cocktail for 25p”. This includes promotions which involve the provision of free or 

discounted alcohol within the same 24 hour period. 

Posters and flyers 

10.43 Irresponsible promotions can also include the sale or supply of alcohol in association 

with promotional materials on display in or around the premises, which can either be 

reasonably considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti social behaviour or 

refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner. 

Dispensing alcohol directly into the mouth 

10.44 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that no alcohol is dispensed 

directly into the mouth of a customer. For example, this may include drinking games 

such as the ‘dentist’s chair’ where a drink is poured continuously into the mouth of 

another individual and may also prevent a premises from allowing another body to 

promote its products by employing someone to dispense alcohol directly into customers’ 

mouths. An exception to this condition would be when an individual is unable to drink 

without assistance due to a disability. 

Free potable water 

10.45 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that free potable water is 

provided on request to customers where it is reasonably available on the premises. 

What is meant by reasonably available is a question of fact; for example, it would not be 

reasonable to expect free tap water to be available in premises for which the water 

supply had temporarily been lost because of a broken mains water supply. However, it 

may be reasonable to expect bottled water to be provided in such circumstances. 

  

Page 116

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 85 

Age verification 

10.46 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. This 

must as a minimum require individuals who appear to the responsible person (see 

paragraph 10.39) to be under the age of 18 years of age to produce on request, before 

being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth, and either a 

holographic mark or ultraviolet feature. The Home Office encourages licensed premises 

to accept cards bearing the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) hologram as their 

preferred proof of age, while acknowledging that many other forms of identification meet 

the requirements of the mandatory condition. 

10.47 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff 

(in particular, staff who are involved in the supply of alcohol) are made aware of the 

existence and content of the age verification policy which applies by the premises. 

10.48 The designated premises supervisor (where there is one) must ensure that the supply of 

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. This 

means that the DPS has personal responsibility for ensuring that staff are not only 

aware of, but are also applying, the age verification policy. 

10.49 It is acceptable, and indeed encouraged, for premises to have an age verification policy 

which requires individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under an age 

greater than 18 to produce such identification on request. For example, if premises have 

a policy that requires any individual that appears to be under the age of 21 to produce 

identification that meets the criteria listed above, this is perfectly acceptable under the 

mandatory code. 

10.50 Licence holders should consider carefully what steps they are required to take to comply 

with the age verification requirements under the 2003 Act in relation to sales of alcohol 

made remotely. These include sales made online, by telephone and mail order sales, 

and alcohol delivery services. Each of these sales must comply with the requirements of 

the 2003 Act. The mandatory condition requires that age verification takes place before 

a person is served alcohol. Where alcohol is sold remotely (for example, online) or 

through a telephone transaction, the sale is made at this point but the alcohol is not 

actually served until it is delivered to the customer. Age verification measures (for 

example, online age verification) should be used to ensure that alcohol is not sold to any 

person under the age of 18. However, licence holders should also consider carefully 

what steps are appropriate to ensure that age verification takes place before the alcohol 

is served (i.e. physically delivered) to the customer to be satisfied that the customer is 

aged 18 or over. It is, therefore, the responsibility of the person serving or delivering the 

alcohol to ensure that age verification has taken place and that photo ID has been 

checked if the person appears to be less than 18 years of age. 

Smaller measures 

10.51 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) shall ensure that the following drinks, if 

sold or supplied on the premises, are available in the following measures: 

•  Beer or cider: ½ pint 

•  Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml 

•  Still wine in a glass: 125ml 

Page 117

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9



86 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

10.52 As well as making the drinks available in the above measures, the responsible person 

must also make customers aware of the availability of these measures by displaying 

them on printed materials available to customers on the premises. This can include 

making their availability clear on menus and price lists, and ensuring that these are 

displayed in a prominent and conspicuous place in the relevant premises (for example, 

at the bar). Moreover, staff must make customers aware of the availability of small 

measures when customers do not request that they be sold alcohol in a particular 

measure. 

10.53 This condition does not apply if the drinks in question are sold or supplied having been 

made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container. For 

example, if beer is only available in pre-sealed bottles the requirement to make it 

available in 1/2 pints does not apply. 

10.54 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff 

are made aware of the application of this condition. 

Ban on sales of alcohol below the permitted price 

10.55 The relevant person (the holder of the premises licence, the designated premises 

supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, the personal licence holder who makes 

or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence, or any member or officer of a 

club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to 

prevent the supply in question) shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 

consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

10.56 The permitted price is defined as the aggregate of the duty chargeable in relation to the 

alcohol on the date of its sale or supply and the amount of that duty multiplied by a 

percentage which represents the rate of VAT chargeable in relation to the alcohol on the 

date of its sale or supply. Detailed guidance on how to make this calculation and a 

calculator to determine permitted prices for each product are available on the Home 

Office website. 

10.57 Where there is a change to the rate of duty or VAT applying to alcohol (for instance, 

following a Budget), the relevant person should ensure that the permitted price reflects 

the new rates within fourteen days of the introduction of the new rate. 

10.58 It is still permitted to sell alcohol using promotions (as long as they are compatible with 

any other licensing condition that may be in force), and the relevant person should 

ensure that the price of the alcohol is not less than the permitted price. Detailed 

guidance on the use of promotions is given in the guidance document available on the 

Gov.uk website. 

Exhibition of films 

10.59 The 2003 Act provides that where a premises licence or club premises certificate 

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of 

children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a 

body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the 

licence (currently only the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC)) or by the 

licensing authority itself. 

10.60 The effect of paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act is to exempt adverts from the 

Page 118

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 87 

definition of regulated entertainment, but not exempt them from the definition of 

exhibition of a film. Since the above mandatory condition applies to ‘any film’, it is 

therefore applicable to the exhibition of adverts. 

Door supervision 

10.61 Under section 21 of the 2003 Act, when a condition is included in a premises licence 

that at specified times an individual must be present at the premises to carry out a 

security activity (as defined in section 21(3)(a) by reference to the Private Security 

Industry Act 2001 (“the 2001 Act”)), the licence must include a condition requiring that 

individual to be licensed by the Security Industry Authority (“the SIA”) under the 2001 

Act, or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001 Act. 

10.62 A premises licence need not require a person to hold a licence granted by the SIA if that 

person benefits from an exemption under section 4 of the 2001 Act. For example, 

certain employees benefit from an exemption when carrying out conduct in connection 

with a certified sports ground (section 4(6) to (12)). Furthermore, in certain 

circumstances persons benefit from an exemption where they operate under the SIA’s 

Approved Contractor Scheme (section 15). 

10.63 Conditions under section 21 of the 2003 Act should only relate to individuals carrying 

out security activities defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. Therefore, they should 

only relate to an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act 

applies (certain manned guarding activities) and which is licensable conduct within the 

meaning of section 3(2) of that Act. The requirement does not relate to individuals 

performing non-security related activities, and section 21 should not be used in relation 

to any such activities. 

10.64 Section 21 of the 2003 Act continues to ensure that a premises licence need not impose 

such a requirement in relation to those licensed premises which the 2001 Act treats as 

unlicensed premises. Those are: 

•  premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence authorising a 

performance of a play or an exhibition of a film; 

•  casinos or bingo halls licensed under the Gambling Act 2005; 

•  premises where a club certificate is in force when activities are being carried on 

under the authority of that certificate. 

See paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act for full details. 

10.65 It should be noted, however, that the 2001 Act will require contractors and a small 

number of employees (those managing/supervising and those supplied under contract) 

to be licensed as manned guards (rather than door supervisors) when undertaking 

licensable conduct on premises to which paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act 

applies. 

10.66 It is therefore important that if a licensing authority intends that individuals must be 

present to carry out security activities (as defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act) 

this should be explicit, as should the mandatory condition for those individuals to hold 

an SIA licence or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001 

Act. On the other hand, where a licensing authority intends that individuals must be 

present to carry out other activities (for example, activities related to safety or steward 

activities to organise, advise and direct members of the public), no mandatory condition 

Page 119

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9



88 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

should be imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act. In all cases it is important when 

determining whether or not a condition is to be imposed under section 21 of the 2003 

Act to consider whether the activities of any individual working in licensed premises fall 

within the definition of security activities in section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. (Regardless 

of whether a condition is imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act, under the 2001 Act 

the appropriate SIA licence must be held by any individual performing an activity for 

which they are licensable under that Act.) 

 

Page 120

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 9


	Agenda
	5 Confirmation of Minutes
	6 Application for a Premises Licence - Lakeland Service Station, Abbey Road, Barrow in Furness
	Appendix 1
	Lakeland Garage Prem Lic app redacted.pdf (p.1-20)
	Lakeland Garage Plan.pdf (p.21)
	Lakeland garage DPS Consent redacted.pdf (p.22-23)

	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9


